Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Paret = C2é4mC37
Nt o PR P

Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019

I

Registered Number. 6442582 \

il

*ASXPIUIU®

L

COMPANIES HOUSE

II\

A2



Northgate Information Soiutions Limited

Contents

2 Directors’ Report
] Strategic Report

8  Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors
Report and the Financial Statements

9 Independent Auditor's Report

11 Financial Section



Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Directors’ Report

Directors

The Board of Dhrectors consists of the following members who possess the necessary range of backgrounds. quabties and
experience to lead and mantain effective control over the activites of the Northgate Information Solutions Limiled group of
companies ( NGA Human Resources or "NGAHR or the Group)

Andrew Monshaw Chief Executive Officer
Steven Chalker Chief Financial Cfficer (appointed on 16 October 2018}
Stuart Ress Chief Financial Officer (resigned on 12 November 2018)

Risk Assessment

The Board has overall respansibiity for the Group s appreach 1o assessing nsk andg the systems of intema! control and for
monitoring their effectiveness in providing is shareholders with a return that 15 consistent with a responsible assessment and
mitigation of rigks This includes reviewing financial. operatonal and compliance contrals and nsk management procedures
which themselves include the secunty and controls around customer and internal data The Board has established on-going
processes for identifying evaiuating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group which accord with the Internal
Control Guidance for Directors in the Combined Code (which only apples to UK listed companies but 1s used for best
practce) Further independent assurance s provided by an internal audit function, operating across the Group. and the
Group s auditors All employees are accountable for operating within these policies  See the Stralegic Report for discussion
of specific nsks

Internal Control

Whiist the Board maintains full control and direction over approprate strategic financial. orgamisational and comphance
1ssues | has delegated to executive management the impiementation of the systems of internal control within an
estabhshed framework

The Boara has put in place an organisaticnal structure which formally defines lines of responsibility and delegations of
authonty There are also established procedures for planning capital expenditure information and reporting systems and for
manitering the Group s business and 1ts performance

Assurance

The Board examines the effectiveness of the Group's

= assessment of nsk by reviewing evigence of nsk assessment activily and a report from internal audit on the nsk
assessment process, and

» systems of internal control pnmarly through agreeing the scope of the internal audit programsme and reviewing its findings
revipws of the annual financial statements and a review of the nature and scope of the external audit.

Ary signtficant findings or identified nsks are closely examined so that appropriate actwon can be taken. The wark of the
internal audit department is focused on areas of prionty identified by the risk analysis and in accardance with the annual
audit plan approved by the Board External audiors are engaged 1o express an opstion on the financial statements. They
rev:ew and test the systemns of mternal financial control and the data contained in the financial statements 1o the exten!
necessary to express their audit opinion They discuss with management the reporting of operational resuits and the
irancial pasition of the Group ang present ther findings to the Board.

Auditors

During the year RSM UK Audit LLP was appointed by the Board as auditors o the Group They have confirmed their
willingness to cantinue i office and therefore in accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution 1o re-
appoint RSM UK Audit LLP will be proposed at a future meeting of the Board.

Dividend Policy
The Board reviews the dividend policy 1n conjunchion with a pohey of retarning funds for future growth. No dividends were
declared during the year under review (2018 mil).

Employees

NGA HR actively promotes an inlernal recruitment process encouraging internal successian pianning and career
development All UK employees have the oppartunity to elect members to an Employee Consultation Group (ECG). The
ECG meets formally with NGA HR s management on a quarierly basis to discuss issues of impontance. The Group also has
a2 number of works councils and employee groups in place across the globe to ensure effective communication takes place
with all empioyees



Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Director’s Report (continued)

Equal Opportunities and Diversity

MNGA HR aims to be an employer of cholce for peaple from different backgrounds Through qur diversity strategy, polices
and mandatory diversity traiming (completed annuaily) we promote respect for the individual and equality of cpportunity for
emplayment. develapment and promotion Oppartunities alse exist far employees of the Group who became disabled 1o
continue their employment or to be trained for othet pesitions in the Group NGA HR makes efforts to accommodate both
pre-existing disabdities as well as for those who become disabled through accessibiity intiatives and recommendations fram
ouf occupational health prowider where necessary. Steps are taken at all stages of the employee hfe cycle {o ensure that no
disceymination on the grounds aof disability or any ather form of discrimination aceurs Within aur diversidy policy it s clearly
stated that NGA has a zero-tolerance approach to discnmination and there are various mechanisms for emplayees to report
any case of suspecied discrummation.

Health and Safety

NGA HR has an established health and safety management system that focuses an the ablity to measure performance and
to pursue continual :improvement mn managqing health and safety A key drver of out health & safety management system ia
effective nisk management which aliows NGA HR w dentify and mitigate nsks to our globafl workforce

Financial Risk Management

NGA HR has access to sources of capital that are suficient to develop the business pracipally thraugh access ta lending
faciities and its cash balances. The Audit Committee meets regularly to review and updale the Risk Register Internal Audnt
testing 1s plarnned far the year to focus on the higher nisk areas recommendations are reported back to the Audit Cemmiliee
to be actioned on a timely basis.

Political Donations
During the period, the Group made no pohtical donations (2018 nul}

Refationships with key stakeholders

NGA HR manages 1ts relationships with 1ts key stakehoider groups as follows

« Customers
NGA HR appoints one or mare individuals through which contact with each customer 1s managed Larger custormers have
dedicated management team sponsorship account managers or teams that focus directty on customer needs. A number
of active user groups are in place where customers can provide feedback on product performance, fulure requirements
and issues of strategic signficance

» Suppliets and partners
NGA HR performs reviews of itg key suppliers and panners on a requiar basis to ensure that maximum performance and
value are being oblained and that nisk and reward are equitably shared NGA HR negolates agreements within which the
Group and s suppliers opetate

Significant events during the period
During the financiat year, the Group scld its 50% stake in NGA Africa Propnetary Limited to s joint venture partner
Business Gonnexign Proprietary Limited

Significant subsequent events
On 1 November 2019 NGA HR was acquired by Alight Solutions Akght Solutions s a US based orgamisation and a leader in
technoiogy-enabled health. wealth and human capital management (HCM) and financial solutions

Research and development

NGA Human Resources has a Products & Innovation grodp that focuses on research and development of in-house
intellectual property complementary 16 our partners cloud HCM solution NGA HR has developed hrX a cloud-based
product suite that enables the delivery of outsourcing services 1o clients and inciudes capabiities such as case management
assisted by artificial inteligence for accelerated routing and resolution of chent questions pre-packaged cloud :ntegration
petween cloud HCM, time. benefits and payroll systems data and processing coverage o run payroll services in 188
couniries and insightful analytics based on the detalled harmenised transaction data from these systems globally.



Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Director’'s Report (continued)

Disclosure of information tc auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Direclors’ Report confirm that so far as they are each aware,
there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Group's audilor is unaware, and each director has taken all the steps he
aught to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group s
auditor 15 aware of that information

bl

—

Steven Chalker
Chief Financial Officer
28 January 2020



Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Strategic Report

Principal Activities

The pnncipal activities of the group are to provide technology sclutions and services for human resources management ang
payroll, founded on atvanced technoiogy platforms and applications, and a global pontfolio of flexible service delivery
oplions

Business Performance

For the year ended 30 April 2019 {"2019") NGA HR generated revenues of £290 9m (2018 restated £378 8m) and adjusted
EBITDA’ of £27 3m (2018 restaled £48.3m) 2018 included 9 months of the UK Mid-Market and SMB businesses After
restructuning one-off tems and propeny provisions ot £5.9m {2018 £11.9m) profitfiloss) on disposal of subsigianies of
£0.6m {2018 (£5.1m)). deprecration. amertisation impairment and loss on disposal of fixed assets the Group recorded an
operating loss of £19 8Bm (2018 restated operating loss £71 2m) Net financing costs decreased 10 £5 6m (2018 £72 8my
2018 inciuded the accelerated amertisation of loan arrangement costs following the repayment of term loans. Loss on
ordinary activities before tax was €25 4m (2018 restated £144 Omy.

At the year end NGA HR had borrowings of E17 Om (2018 £20 4; and net assets of £82 7m (2018 restated £106 7m;
NGAHR s now a business with a focus on 18 market leading position in the mult country payroll outscurcng and mult
process HR outsourcing markets

NGA HR continues to focus on certain key performance indicators specifically revenue growth cash earmngs before
interest, tax depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) gross margm % and order book total contract vatue

Business Model and Strategy

NGA HR's main offering 1s the provision of multi process HR ang multi country payroll outsourcing services to muitinational
and large domestic customers mainly in Europe and North America Services are provided to customers using proprietary
technology from delivery centres around the world.

Customer satisfaction continued to be an area of focus in 2019 Improved Service Level Agreement (SLA; perfarmance
continued 1o reflect increased levels of client satisfaction and we continued to see company-wide delivery improvements
both in terms of qualty and efficiency

NGA HR will continue to buitd on our chent-centnc and segment-focused foundations to deliver growth n revenue profit and
cash flow

On ! Novemnber 2018 NGA HR was acquired by Ahght Solutions The Direclors see this agquisition as the next step 1o
aextend the growth potential of the business as we are joining forces with a market leader in complementary and adjacent
afferings

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Credit risk

Credi risk 1s the risk of financial i0ss to the Group f a customer or counterparty to a financial mstrument fanls 1o meet :ts
contractual obhgations and arnses principally from the Group s trade and other recewvables from customers

Management has a credil pohcy 1n place and exposure to credit nsk s monitored on an on-gaing basis Credit evaluations are
performed on all cusiomers requinng cregit over a cerlain amourtt

Interest rate risk

interest rate nsk s the risk of increased net finanang costs due to iNcreases in market interest rates The Group finarces
its operations through & mixture of retained profits. bank borrowings anc eguity. Foliowing the sale of the LK businesses
and the repayment of the Group's term loan faciities the Group s exposure to interest rate nsk s matenally reduced

Any surplus cash is invested in shont-term bank deposits al the prevaiing rates of interest in orger to achieve the market
rate of return

Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates itermatonally and s exposed 1o foreign currency nisk on transactions genomingted in & currgney
olher than the functionai currency and on tha transiation of the batance sheet ang income statement of foregn operations

" Adjusted EBITDA 15 defined as operating profit before significant restructunng, one-off items. property provis,ons
amortisation of intangibles, depreciation of fined assets and profitl 10ss on disposal of subsihanes




Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

into sterling The cumencies giving nise la this risk are pnmarily US doliars and Euros The Group has both cash inflows
and outflows 1n these currencies that create a naturai hedge

In managing currency nsks the Group aims to reduce the impact of shorl-term fluctuations on the Group s cash inflows and
outfiows 1n a foreign currency The Group also hedges any material foreign currency iransacton exposure Over the longer
lerm permanent changes in foreign exchange could have an impact on consolidation of foreign subsidsaries earnings,
althrough it is the Group s pehey not to hedge foreign currency translation nsk

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity nsk 1s 1he nsk that the Group wili not be able 10 meet its financial commitments as they fall due.

The Group s objective 1s to ensure that adequate facilities are available through use of bank loans and finance leases The
Group manages hquidity nsk through regular cash flow forecasting and monitoning of cash fiows, managearnent review and
regular review of working capial and costs The Group regularly morutors its avaitable headroom under its borrowing
faciiies

Cyber Security

Risks 10 the business operations from cyber-attacks on its undertying infrastructure remamn a constant concern and NGA
HR has invested heavily to improve deteclive, protective and resibent systems which aim to identify attacks, prevent
attacks from being successful and pravide resibency 1If an atlack does succeed. These systems are tested on a monlhly
basis and by ad hoc simulations A cntical pant of the cyber security strategy has been the establishment of a Globa!
Securty Operations Centre 1o brning together data from across the infrastructure and provide rapid correlation of and
response (o secunly events The global cyber threat landscape 1s continually evolving and creating new attack vectors and
the company 1 commitled 1o responding accordingly

Climate change
The Group acknowledges that its activiies — such as running dala centres. offices, and travel - contribute 1o climate change
and associated nsks  For many years. il has been the target 1o manage and minimise emissions

Gombating chmate change remains integral to developing sustainable services for NGA HR's chents i all sectors Qur
busingsses continue to piace a strong focus on improving our chents environmental perfsrmance by enabling them to access
modem on demand technologies which enable working practices that reduce environmental foolprint and generate savings

Business Risks

Risks to the business include the buoyancy of the world economy and levels of employment around the giobe impacting
ncome in our HR services business In addition, despite a¥ the secunly systems. disaster recovery. business continuty and
cngis management plans and procedures in place 10 protect our infrastructure and business, a cyber attack or another
unforeseen event such as a naturai disasler may cause an nterruption (o cur services and operations As regards the nsk
trom ioss of key personnel, the company has succession plans in place Price pressures in the market are mitigated by
improving the operational efficiency of our services The Board s very consoous of these matiers and ensures thal NGA HR
continually fltexes costs in the Group to meet client gemand

Employees

MGA HR confinues 10 enhance employability in our communities through apprenticeships, graduate (rainee schemes, work
expenence and paraership with companies By doing this, NGA HR 1s addressing shorlages of skilled staff. gender issues
ang supply chain ssues, creating a skilled future workforce which will benefit |T sectar growth

NGA HR promotes respect for the individual and equality of opporturity for employment through our policies and mandaiory
diversity training and aclively encourages succession planning and career development The Group also provides
employees with a flexibie benefits scheme in the UK and abroad where applicable, which enables them 1o choose benefits
that best support therr Ifestyle Opportunities also exist for employees of the Group who become disabled 1o continue therr
aempioyment or 1o be trained for other positions in the Group. An equality survey 1s conducted regularly

Tne Directors recognise the smportance of good communications with NGA HR s employees and of informing ang consulting
with them on a regular basis This 1s mainly achieved through reguiar meebings, perscnal appraisals, e-matl communications
and the Your Say emptoyee survey



Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Strategic Report (continued)

Environmental Performance

Environmental sustainability 15 fully embedded into service dehivery methodology NGA HR focuses both on reducing the
number of assets required as well as favouring energy-efficient energy consumption models Assets are reused wherever
possible and where they are beyond economcal reparr, they are recycled n accardance with the Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment Directve (WEEE} Further reductions are ganed Dy equipping our empioyess with the tools and
technology to enable flexible and mobile working

impact of Brexit

On June 23 2018, the United Kingdom (U.K ) held a referendum in which voters approved an exit from the EU commonly
referred to as "Brexit”. Although it still remains unknown what the exact terms of the exit wili be 0 the future there may be
greater restrictons between the U K. and E U countries and increased regulatory complexiies. These changes may
adversely affect our operations and hnancial results but the company will continue to monitor these closely  To date the
Group has seen na negative impact on our business, which generates the majonty of s revenues in EU countnes and North
Amenca Qur exposure to the U K market 15 small with the majonty of a business transacted in overseas jusnsdictions but
sterling 1s our functional currency therefare the company is hikely to be exposed lo some exchange rate volatity

—

Steven Chalker
Chief Financiai Officer X

28 January 2020



Northgate information Solutions Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the Strategic Report, the
Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report the Directors’ Report and the group and parent company
financial statements 1IN accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law reguires the direclors {o prepare group and parent company financial statements for each firancial year Under
that law they have elected to prepare the group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Stangards as adopted by the European Unton (IFRSs as adopied by the EU) and applicable law and have elected to prepare
the parent company financial stalements in accordance with UK accounting standards and appiicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice). inciuding FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Under company law he directors must not approve the financral statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that periad  In prepanng each of
the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required 1o

. select sutable accounting poficies and then apply them consistently:
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reiiable and prudent,

« for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EL:

= for the parent company financiai statements slale whether appiccable UK accounling standards have been followed.
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaimed in the financial stalements.

+  assess the group and parent company s ability 1o continue as a going concern. disclosing as applicable matters related
o going concern, and

+ use the going concem basis of accounting unless they erther intend to iquidate the group ar the parent comparny of to
cease operabhons, or have no realistic alternative bul to do so

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group and
parent company s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financiat position of both the group and
the parent company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
responsibie for such internal control as they determine s necessary 10 enabie the preparation of financial statements that are
tree from matenal misstatement. whether due to fraud or error and have generai responsbility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open o them to safeguard the assels of the group and 1o prevent and detec! fraud and other wreguianties



Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Members of Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Northgate Information Solutions Limited (the ‘parent company ) and its
subsidianes (the graup } for the year ended 30 April 2019 which comprise the Group Income statement. Group statemen? of
comprehensive income, Group statement of financial position, Group statement of changes in equity, Group statement of cash
flows, Company staternent of financial posiion, Company statement of changes 1n equity and notes to the financal statements,
inctuding a summary of significant accounting patices The financial reponing framewark that has been applied In the
preparation of the group financial statements 1S applicable law and internatonal Fingncial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union. The financiai reporting framewark that has been apphed in the preparaton of the parent
company financal statements & applicable taw and Unded Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS101 Reduced
Disclosure Framework'”

in our opiInion®

+ lhe financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group s and of the parent company s affars as at
30 Apnil 2019 and of the group s loss for the year then ended

« the group financial statements have been properlfy prepared in accordance with IFRSs as agopted by the European
Unan,

+ lhe parent company Tinanciat stalements have been properly prepared in accordance with Un:ited Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnes Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit wn accordance with International Standards on Audiing (UK) (1SAs {UK)) ang apphcabie taw, Cur
responsibilites under those standards are further descnbed in the Auvditar s responsibilites for the audit of the financial
staterments section of our report. We are independent of the group and parent company 1n accordance with the ethical
requirements thal are relevant o our audit of the financal statements in the UK including the FRC's Ethucal Standard and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities 1In accordance wih these reguirements We beliave that the audit ewidence we
have oblained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion

Ceonclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing 1o report in respect of the following matters in relation 1o which the 1ISAs (UK) regurre
us to report to you where:

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 1 the preparation of the financial statements 1s nat
appropriate, or

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any «dentfied matenal uncerlanbies that may cast
significant doubt about the group s or the parent company s ability 1o continue to adop! the going concern basis of
accounting for a penod of at least tweive months from the date when the financial statements are authonsed for issue

Other information

The other information compnses the information ncluded in the annual report. other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon The directors are responsible for the other information Qur opimon on the financial statements dooas
not cover the ather information and. except o the exlent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thergon

I connection with our audit of the hinanciat slatements, our responsDity 18 10 read the other informatisn and, i daing so
consicer whether the other information i$ materially incensistent with the financial slatements or our knowledge oblained n
the audn or otherwise appears 10 be matenally misstated. If we wentty such matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenal
misstatements, we are required 10 determine whether there s a matena!l missiatement in ihe inancial sialements or 8 matenal
misstatement of the other information i, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there 1s 3 matenal
rmisstaternent of this other informalion, we are required to reporl that fact

We have nothmg to report in this regard
Qpinians on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In pur ppinion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
+ the wnformation given i the strategic report and the directors’ repon for the financial year for which the finarcial

siatements are prepared s consisient with the financial statements, and
« the strategic repont and the direclors reporl have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Northgate Information Solutions Limited
(continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the Iight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment oblained i the
course of 1he audn, we have not identfied matenal misstalements in the strategic report or the directors’ repon

We have nothing to report in respect of tne following matters in relation to which the Companias Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if 1n Qur opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kepl by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit have not
been recerved from branches not visited by us, or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. or

« ceran disclosures of directors remureration specified by law are not made or

. we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibiiities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page B. the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satished that they give s true and fair view, and for such intermnai cantrol
as lhe direclors determine 15 necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In prepanng the financial statements the directors are responsible for assessing the group s and the parent company s abibty
lo continue as a going concern. disclosing. as appiicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either inlend to hquidate the group or the parent company of (o cease operations, or have
no reakstic alternative but {o do so

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from matenal
misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to 1ssue an audior's report that includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance
15 a hgh level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an autit conducted In accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
matenal misstatement when it exssts Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are consicered matenal f, individualty
or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expecled 1o infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financiai stalements

A further descrniption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 15 iocated on the Financial Reporting
Council s website at hitp /www fre org uk/auditorsresponsbliies This descrniption forms part of our audnor s report

Use of our repert

This report 1s made solely 1o the company's members as a body (n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparies
Act 2006  OQur audd work has been underiaken so that we might state to the company s members those matters we are
required to state 1o them in an auditor s report and for no other pumose. To the fullest extent permitted by law we do not
accept or assume responsibilily to anyene other than the company and the company s members as a bedy, for our augil work,
for this report. or for the opinions we have formed

.
=S U AT e

Richard Bartiett-Rawhings (Semor Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP. Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

RSM UK Aucit LLP

Pinnacte. 170 Migsummer Blvg

Milton Keynes

MKS 1BP

28 January 2020



Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section

Group income statement for the year ended 30 April 2019

Year ended 30 April 2019

Year ended 30 Apri 2018 (Resiated)

Discontinued Oiscontnued
Continuing Operations Continiing  Operabons
Operations {note 2, 33) Total Operations  {nate 2 33 Total

Noles £m £m £m L £m £m
Revenue 3 250.9 - 290.9 2797 991 378 8
Operating Cosls 4 {311.3) 0.6 {310.7) (357 4 92 61} 1450 0}
Group operating profit{loss) 4 (20.4} 0.6 (19.8) TN 85 (7123
Operating profit before significant
restructuring, one-off ltems, property
provisions, amortisation of intangibles,
impairments, depreciation of tangible fixed
assets and profit{loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries 27.3 27.3 17 6 317 4G 3
Amortisation of other Intangible fixed assets 9 (18.1) . {18.1} 116 6) 481 121 5)
Depreciation of tangible ixed assets 10 {4.3) - (4.3} 58 (08 (BB
Loss on gdispasal of fixed assels 4 - 4 8) (01 R
Significant restructunng. one-offl ilems and
prapeny rovIsions 4 (5.9 (5.9 (115 043 (119,
Impawrment of goodwill 9 (15.7} - {15.7) {50 0; (50 G
Impairment of other inlangible frixed assets ) 1.4) N {1.4}
Prohit/(Ioss) on disposal of subsichanes 2 0.6 0.6 51 B,
Amortsayion of acquired ntangibles 9 {2.3) (2.3) 6 6 V139 {205
Group operating profitioss) {20.4) 0.6 {19.8) (77 74 55 1712)
Financial income 6 0.1 . o1 20 20
Himancial EXpenses 6 57 (5.7) 718 74 9)
Net financing costs 6 (5.8) . (5.6) 169 8 30 (72 9
Share of profit of affihate a1 [P ]
Profit/(ioss) before tax (26.0) 0.6 (25.4) (147 4, 34 {144 0y
Tax (charge)fcredit 8 4.8 - 4.8 (31 31
Profit(loss) for the year from continuing/ ’
discontinued operations 1.2) €16 (20.6) 1150 53 34 (i4 f_ 1_’
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 0.6 34
Attributable to:
Equity hoiders of the parent (20.6) } (147 1)

The notes on pages 16 to 52 are an integral par of these conschdated financial s1atements
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Financial Section (continued)

Group statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 April 2018

Year endad
Year ended 30 Aprit 2018
30 Aprit 2019 {Restated)
holes £m £m
Loss for the year {20.8) {147 1)
Iterns that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of subsidiary defined benefil pensian schemes 18 0.4 14 3)
Delferred 1ax on remeasurements of subsidiary delined benedt pension schemes 8 08
0.4 (335
[tems that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign exchange ranslalion differences {3.8) 124
Total other comprehensive income {3.4) g
Comprehensive 1oss for the year {24.0) (138 2
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent {24.0) (138

The noles on pages 16 to 52 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Financial Section (continued)

Group statement of financial position as at 30 April 2019

2019 2018 1 May 2017
(Restaled) (Reslated)
7 Noles gm £m - fm
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 46.0 829 5280
Acquired ang ciher intangible assels 9 39.7 475 1049
Total mtangible 3ssels 857 104 632 4
Propertly, plant and equipment 10 8.4 0o 294
investments 1 R ] a5
Deferred lax assets 15 15.4 48 221
Trage ang other receivables 12 54.8 58 4 B0 4
Other recewaties . - [
Total non-current assets 164.3 1838 7302
Current assots
frade and other recevables 2 102.9 g7 4 141 9
Cash and cash equivalents 16 13.2 183 212
Total current assets 116.1 115 7 163 3
Totat assets 280.4 299 3 902 5
Non-current liabilities
inerest-beanng '0ans and borrowings 17 42 138 340 5
Employee benelts 18 01 - 56 0
Provisions 19 0.5 1 na
Detemred [ax llabtlies 15 77 80 205
Trade and olher payabies - 20 437 516 428
Total non.current liahilities 56.2 74 8 460 6
Current liabitities
Interest-beating '0ans and borrowings v 128 66 07
Rrovisions 19 0.6 08 10
Taxahien 11.9 5 s6
Trade ang olher payables 20 116.2 in2 2 177 1
Other financial lgbilies e 56
Total current habilities 141.5 138 1970
Total liabilities 167.7 1926 657 6
Net assets 827 106 7 2449
issued share caplal a2 6.1 51 61
Other distrbutabie resarves 83t9 4319 5310
Retained earnings ‘ L (755.3) 731 3 583 1)

Shareholders’ funds 82.7 106 7 244 9

The notes on pages 16 lo 52 are an ntegral part of these consoldated financiai statements

Approved by the Board of Directars on 28 January 2020 and signed on s behalf by

Steven Chalker
Chief Financiat Gfficer
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Group statement of changes in equity as at 30 April 2019

Other Equity

tislnibutable Retaned sharenplders

Share capihal resarves earnngs Funas

£m £m £ £m

Balance at 30 Aprid 2017 51 8319 (588 7) 249 3

Change in accounting pohcy — IFRS 15 (note 32; (44) 443

Restated Balance at 30 April 2017 61 8316 15483 1) 744 9

Resiated loss for the year (note 31 & 32) (47 1 (147 1)
Other comprehensive income for the year

Remeasuremenis of gefined benef schemes (4 3) (43)

Deferred tax on remeasuremenis of defined benel pensicn schermes a8 08

Foreign exchange tranglation differences 12 4 124

Restated Balance at 3¢ April 2018 6.1 819 (731.3) 106.7

Loss for the year - {20 63 {20 &)
Othar comprenensive income for the yuar

Remeasurements of delined benefil pension schemes - 04 04

Foreign exchange translalion differences . {3.8) t38)

Balance at 30 Aprii 2019 6.1 8319 (755.3) 827

The notes on pages 1616 52 are an imegral pan of these consoldated financial statements.
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited
Financial Section (continued)

Group statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 April 2018

Year ended
30 April 2019

Year ended
0 Aprit 2618
(Reslated!

Notes £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year belore 1ax (25.4) 147 1
Adjustments for
Amartisation of acquired intangibles a 2.3 205
Amortisation ol ¢ther infangibles g 18.1 215
Depreciaton 10 4.3 66
Imparrment of iInvestments - 23
Impairment of other intangibles 4] 1.4
Impairment of goodwiii g 157 500
(Frolily ioss on disposal of lixed assels 4 - 48
(Profny loss on aisposal of business 2 (0.6} 51
Nel financing costs [} 5.6 729
Share of profit from associate - 161,
RAD tax creart 10.5) 31
Net cash from operating activities before changes in working capital }
ang provisions 20.9 397
Foreign exchange movements (5.M (85
Change i trade and other receivables (1.2) 31
Change m 'rade and other payables 6.0 17 8)
Change in provisions and employee benefits ) o o B (1.0) 48
Net cash from operating activities before taxes paid 19.7 117
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of discontinued operations nel of cash disposed 2 0.6 423 ¢
interes! receved 0.1 20
Acqusiion of intangible assets {14.1} (24 B,
Acquisition of property plant and equipment (1.9 (a0
Net cash used in investing activities {15.3) 307 8
Net cash from aperations after investing activities 4.4 409 5
Taxes paid {2.h 20
Net cash frorn operations after investing activities and before financing
activities 1.7 07 2
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid {2.2) i37 21
New loans drawn down - 236
Repaymen! of borrowngs (1.2} 1390 9
Setllement of denvative hability L4 th
Increase in finance lease Labilities 1.8 69
Payment of finance lease habilities (5.3} 82
Net cash from financing activities (6.8} 14160
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 May 18.3 214
Net decrease m cash and cash equivalents excluding effec! of foregn 5.1) a0
axchange rate movements on ¢ash held 5. A
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements on cash held Gy
Netl decrease n cash and cash equivalents {5.1) i3 1

163

Cash and cash equivalents at 3¢ April 6

The notes on pages 16 to 52 are an miegral parl of these consoldaled tnancal slatements
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Northgate Information Salutions Limited (the Company 115 a company incorporated and doemiciled in the United Kingdom.
The consohdated accounts of the Company for the year enced 30 Apni 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidianes
itogether referred 1o as the Group }

Statement of Compliance

The Group accounts have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU { adopteg FRS') The Company has elected 1o prepare s parent
company accounts in accordance with FRS 101 and these are presented on pages 53 10 61

Basis of Preparation

The Group s business activities 10gether with the factors ikely to affect ils future development performance and position are
set out in the Drrectors Report and Strategic Report set out on pages 2 to 7. Note 24 to the financial statements includes the
Group s objectives policies and processes for managing its capital its financial nsk management objectives, detalls of is
financial Instruments and hedging activities, and its exposures to credit nsk and iiquidity nsk

Details of how the Group 15 funded are set out in Note 23

The Directors are satisfied thal the Company and the Group have adequate resources to conlinue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future as set out in the Strategic Report on page 5 For this reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the accounts

The accounts are presented in pounds stering. which is the functional currency of the Group. rounded 10 the nearest £0 1
mithon and have been prepared under the histoncal cost convertion except for the folliowing assets and habilities that are
stated at fair vatue in the companson perad, compnsing dervative financial instruments and defined benefit pension
schemes Accounting policies have been apphed consistently in the period

Non-GAAP Performance Measures

The Board has presented ' Operating profil before significant restructunng. one-off tems, prapery provisions, amortisation of
intangibles. impairments, depreciation of tang:bie fixed assets and profit(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries” as an adjssted
orofit measure The Board believes thal this measure provides aggitional useful information for the shareholders on the
underlying performance of the business These measures are consistent with how business performance s monitored
internaliy The adjusted operating profit 1s no! a recognised profit measure under adopted IFRS and may not be directly
comparable with adjusted profit measures used by other companies The adjustments made to operating profit have the
effect of excluding excephional income and charges, which are predominantly one-off in nature and therefore create volallity
in reported earmings

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorparate the accounts of the Company and enbities controlled by the Company {its
subsidianes} made up to 30 Apnl each pertod The Group sold its only joint venture during the year

The Group controls an enlity when it 1s exposed {c. or has nghts to, vanable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the abinty to affect those returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through is
power over the entity

Subsihanes

Subsidianies are entities controiled by the Group The financiai statements of subsidianes are included in the consolidated
tinancial statements from the date that controf commances until the date thatl control ceases On acquisiion, the assets and
hapilties and contingent katiliies of a subsidiary are measured at therr far vaiues at the date of acquisiion Any excess of
the cost of acquistion over the fair values of the Wdentifiable net assels acquired is recognised as goodwili.

All business comtunations are accounted far by applying the acguistion method. Business combinations are accounted for
using the acquisition method as al the acquisition datle which 1s the date an which control is transferred to the Group.



Northgate information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 {continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Consolidation (continued)

Jomnt ventures

Entites where the Group jointly shares control wilh other parties are joint ventures and are accounted for by applying the
equity method, The Group § share of net assets and share of net profit are separately disclosed from the rest of the Group

Acquisitions on or after 1 January 2010

For acquisitons on or after 1 January 2010, the Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as

« the far value of the consideration transterred. plus

» {he recogrised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. plus

s the fair value of the existng equity interest In the acquiree, tess

s the net recognised amount (generally farr valug) of the identifiable assets acquired and habilibes assumed
When the excess 1s negalive a bargain purchase gamn s recognised immediately in profit or 1oss

Costs reflated 10 the acquristion, other than those associaled with the issue of debdt or equily secunties, are expensec as
incusred

Any contingent conswderation payable s recogrised at fair vaiue at the acquisition date. I he contingent consideration s
classified as equity. it s not re-measured and seftlement 1s accounted for within equity Otherwise. subsequent changes io
the faur value of the contingent consideration are recognised in profit or loss

Acquesttions between 1 May 2004 and 1 January 2010

For acquisitions between 1 May 2004 and 1 January 2010. goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over
the Group s interest in the recognised amount (generally farr valuel of the identifiable assets habilies and contingent
labiities of the acquiree When the excess was negalive, a bargain purchase gamn was recogmsed immediately in arofit ar

loss

Transaction costs ather than those associated with the 1ssue of debt or eguity securites that the Group incurred in
connection with business combinations were capitalised as part of the cost of the acquisition

Change in subsidiary ownership and foss of controt

Changes in the Group s interest in a subsidiary that dc not result in a loss of control are accourted for as equily transactions
Where the Group loses control of a subsidiary the assels and liabihties are derecogrised along with any related non-
controlling interest ang other components of equity. Any resulting gain or Joss 1s recogmised in proft ar loss Any interest
relained 1n the former subS:diary 15 measured at fair value when cantrol 1s lost

Transactions elminated on consohdahon

Intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consclidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 {continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Use of Estimates and Judgements (see note 28)

The preparation of financial siatements requires management 1o make judggements, estimates and assurmptions that affect
the applicaton of accounting pohoies and the reponed amounts of assets, habithies, ncome and expenses Actual resuits
may differ from these estimales

Estmates and uncerlying assumplions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions o accounling estimates are
recognised in the penod in which the estmate 1s revised and in any future penods affectec. Judgements made by
management in the appicaton of adopted IFRSS that have significant effect on the accounts and estimates with a significant
risk of matenal adjustment in the next peniod are disciesed in note 28

In paricular. Information about sigruficant areas of estimation and uncertainty and crtical judgements i applying accounting
pohcies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised In the finantial slatements are described in the
following notes

Nole 2 — Acquisibon and disposal of subsidianes

Note 3 - Revenue

Note 9 - Intangible fixed assets

MNote 13 - Accrued revenue

Note 14 - Contract costs

Note 15 — Deferred tax

Note 19 — Provisions

Note 21 - Deferred revenue

Note 24 — Financial instrumenis and nsk management

Note 28 — Accounting estmates and judgements

Revenue recognition and goodwll are discussed in the relevant sections of the accounting policies nate
Intangible Assets

Goodwil

Goodwill ansing on consohdation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company s inmterest 1n the farr
value of the identifiable assets and habilties of a subsiciary at the date of acquisition Goodwill is recognised as an asset
and reviewed for impairment al least annually Any impairment Is recognised immediately in the income statemen! and s not
subsequently reversed

On aisposal of a subsidiary the attnbutable net book value of goodwilt 1s included in the determunation of the profit or loss on
disposal

Research and development expentiture

Expenditire on research achivities 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which itis incurred  An internally-generated
intangible asset ansing from the Group $ software development 15 recognised only If all the following conditions are met

* an asset s created that can be «dentified:

= :tis probabie that the asset created will be techmically and commercially feasible;
= the Group has sufficient resources 1o complete devetopment,

+ the asset will generate future economic benefits, and

+ 1he gevelopment cost of the asset can be measured rehably



Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section {continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued}

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible Assets {continued)
Research and development expenditure (continued)

The expenditure capitalised tncludes the cost of matenats, direct labour and an appropnate proportion of overheads COther
development expenditure 1§ recogrised m the income statement as an exgense as incurred. Capitahsed development costs
are slated at cosl less accumulated amortisation and impaiment (0sses

Amortisation 1s charged ¢ the income statement on 2 straight-ine basrs over a useful economic iife of 5 years. commencing
from the date the assel s first ready for use.

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which i relates Al other expanditure, mcluding expenditure on nternally-generated goodwili and brands, 1s recognised in
the income statement when incurred

Other mtangible assets excluding goodwil! and research and development expenditure
Acguired intangibles and purchased software are slated at the cost less accumulated amortisalion ang imparment 10sses

New intangibles recognised under IFRS 3 relating o customer contracts and relationships. order backiog. technology based
assels ang trage names p'e amorised straight-iine over a useful economic ble of 3-10 years

Amounts captalised under purchased software are amortised on a straight-line basis over periods between 3-5 years
Impairment excluding Deferred Tax Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet! date 1o determine whether there 1s any
indicatian of imparrment. If any such indication exists the asset s recoverable amount 15 estimateg If the recoverable
amount of an asset {cash-generating und} s estimated o pe less than s carrying amount. the carrying amount of the gsset
{cash-generating unit) s reduced 1o 118 recaverable amount Animpanrment 105515 recognised as an expense immediately

The recoverable amount 15 the higher of farr value tess costs to sell and value in use In assessing value in use the
estimated future cash flows are discounted Lo their present value using 3 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the tme value of money and the rnisks specfic to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. Where an impaiment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset cash-generating
unit} 1s Increased to the revised estimate of its recaverable amount but 50 that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determuined had no impairment loss been recogrsed for the asset (cash-
generating unitj in prior years. A reversal of an smparment loss is recogrised as income immedialety.

An impaiment lass in respect of goodwill 15 not reversed in respect of other assets, imparment losses recogised in prior
periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists An
impairment loss 1s reversgd f there has been a change n cstmates used o determine the recoverable amount




Northgate information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group generales revenue from three types of services
»  Payroli setup and HR agministralion services,
«  Consuiting services.
« Sale of hcences

Payments anc receivables reiated to implementation prior to go hive of Payroll and MR admanistration services are deferrea
to the balance sheet along with associaled costs unti go live. as the implementation service does not deliver a performance
oblgation to the customer implementation 1s not a pedormance obligation, nor are any operational costs INcurred prnor io go
hve The release of deferred implementation revenue and costs is recogrised on a straight-line basis ever the contract term
The adjusted monthly revenue from the provision of services will be recognised each month that the service for a
performance obligation 1s provided

The Company also enters 1nio contracts with customers for instaillaton, customisation, maimnienance or other technical
services or consullancy on third parly software. Each promese under these contracls 1s a separate performance obligation
and revenue 1s recognised for such contracls on a me and matenal basis or percentage of completion method Timing of
payments tends to be similar to tming of revenue

The outnght sale of third-party sofiware under reselier agreements is a singie performance obigation which is fulfilled at a
poinl in ime when the hcence ownership is transferred to the customer. Revenue ansing from such contracts 1s recognised
at this point and the timing of payment! 15 often severat years, over the life of the licence

The Group recognises revenue based on 5 basic principles descabed in IFRS15
« Identfy the conlract with a customer,
. Identify all the individual performance obligations within the contract:
¢ Determine the transaction pace,
« Allocate the pnee to the parformance obligations;
=  Recogmse revenue as the performance cbligations are fulfilled

it a customer pays. or the Group has an unconditonal nght to receive consideration befare the performance obhigation 15
completed, then the revenue 15 nol recognises and a deferred Lability is created

i the Group performs by transfernng goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment s due. the revenue s recogrised and an accrued revenue asset 1s created The assels are assessed for
mparment in hne with IFRS 9

A distinct service 1s a single performance oblgation and each country serv.ced 1s one performance obligation. Central
services for muiti-country payroll contracts cannot be easily aliocated between the different countries and services. hence
will be accounted as if it was a performance obhgation with the same duralion as the full contracl, which will have materally
the same financial result as if the revenues and costs were allocated across all performance obligations

The transaction pnice for the contract 15 cetermined as the sum of fixed consideralion. expected monthly billing. less an
estmate of vaiume tiscounts If any  Otner vanabie items such as higher/ lower employee numbers for PEPM charge (per
employee per month amount charged 1o customer), credits for service fevel, third party penatties or inflationary increases are
taken in the month they are received or incurred. Terminaton fees are taken at a point In time when the termination 1s
compiete.
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 Aprit 2019 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Costs on contracts with customers

An asset s recogmised for incremental costs lo obtain a contrac! (such as sales commissions), where Ihe Graup expects to
recover the costs

An asset s recagrised for costs to fultil contracts if the folliowing crtena are met.
- the: costs are drectly related to a contract,
- the costs generate or enhance the Group s resources used in sausfying performance obhgations in the future and
- the cosls are expecled 10 be recovered.

The nature of costs that are elgible incluge drect labour and associated cosls . sub-contractor costs, contracl management
and matenials Qther costs such as general & admmistration, wasied resources and expenses that relate to satisfied
performance obligations are all recogrised as expenses

The asset is amortised over the penod that the benefit witt be iransferred to the customer  Assets are assessed far
impairment in ine with 1AS 36

Foreign Exchange

Transactions denommnated in foregn currenoies are ranslated into sterling at the rates ruing at the dates of transachons
Monetary assets and liabilites genominated in foreign currencies al the balance sheet dale are translated al the rates ruling
al that date. Translation differences are taken 10 the income statement except for differences ansing on retransiation of a
financial habiity designated as a hedge of the net mvesiment i a foreign operaton, which are recogrised dwectly i eguity
Non-maonetary assels and hablil:es that are measured in terms of hustoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate a! the date of the transacton

On consohdaton. resulls of overseas subsidianies are ranslated using tne average exchange rate for the period unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly. The balance sheets of overseas subsidianes, including goodwill ang fair value
adiustments ansing on consolidation are transiated tc the Group s presentatonal currency Pounds Steriing, using the
clasing penod-end rate  Exchange dfferences ansing 1If any, are taken to a translation reserve Such translanon differences
are recognised as ncome or as expenses N the penod i which the operatcn s disposed of

Hyperinflationary Economies

IAS 29. Financial Reporting in Hypennflationary Economes [1AS 2875 requires financial statements whose functronal
currency 1s the currency of a hypennfiatonary economy to be stated in terms of the measunng unit current at the end of the
reporting penod The financial information 1s restated based on the consumer price index +* CPH i before being translated into
a different presentation currency Al amounts are transiated at the closing exchange rate at the date of the most recent
Consohdated Statement of Financial Position

Dunng the year ended 30 Apnl 2019 hypennfiation accounting was required for foregn operations with a functional currency
of the Argentimian peso as the conditons of IAS 29 had been met Annso Argentina S A 1s an entily thats part of the NGA
Group which has a functional currency of the Argentinian Peso, however as hus enbly 1s not a significant part ol the Group,
adjustiments under 1AS 29 have nol been applied on grounds of matenalty

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group s batance sheet when the Group becomes a parly to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and are iIntaily recogrised at {arr value at trade date All financial assets and
liabilrties are classified as current or non-current depending upon the maltunty date of the instruments Finangial assets are
derecogmsed (f the Group § contractual nghts 1o the cash flows from the financial assets expire or If the Group transfers the
financial asset to anothe! pany wilhout retamning control of subsianlially all nsks and rewards of the asset Financia! habites
are derecogrised if the Group s obligatons specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled
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Northgate information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consofidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial Instruments {continued)
Accounting poicies apphed from 1 May 2018

IFRS 9. Financial instruments has been applied for the first time in these financial statements IFRS 8 has replaced the
mu'tiple classification and measurement models in 1AS 39 Financial Instruments recognition and measurement with a single
model that intially has only two classification categornies amortised cost and farr value There have been no financial
impacts as a result of the application of IFRS 9

Financial assels

Onanitial recognitien, financial assets are classified as either being subsequently measurec at either amortised cost or fair
value depending upon the Group s business model for managing the asset and its cashfiow charactenstics. Financial assets
are not reclassified following imibal recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets are deemed to be held under one of three business models.

T Hoid to coliect — where the business obrechive 15 10 hold the assel 10 collect the contractual cashfiows.

2 Holo to collect and sell ~ where the business objective s to hold the asset to collect the contractuai cash flows and to
sell the financal assets. and

3 Other

unless specfically designated 1o be held at fair value through profit or loss. a financial asset 18 measured at amaorbised cast if
it1s held within a hold to coliect business model and s contractual terms give rnise on specified dates to cashfiows that are
solely repayrnents of pnincipal and mterest on the principat amoun outstanding

Financial assets held within a hold to collect and sell business model are measured at farr value through OCI if the
contractual terms give nse on specified dates to cashflows that are solely payments of pnncipai and interest on the principal
amount putstanding The Group does not currently have any such assets

All other financral assets are held at farr value through profit or loss. Transaction costs of financial assets carned at far vaiue
through profit and ioss are expensed in profit or loss Amortised costis measured using the effective interest method

Imparrent of inancial assets

Aloss allowance 's recogrised for expected credit losses taking into account changes in the level of credit nsk Where credit
nsk 1s cansidered to be iow 1he loss allowance s imited 1o expected lasses ansing from default events that are possible
within 12 months of the balance sheet date Impairments are charged to adrmimstralive expenses in the income statement

The majcr class of financial assets held by the group that could be impacted by IFRS ¢ impairment ioss recogrition is trade
recewvables As gescnbed in nole 24 the group s exposure to credit nsk in respect of these financial asse!s is considered
low The drrectors have additionally assessed the impact of impairment losses based on historic actual losses and
concluded that the impact i immateral

Trade and other recewvables

Trade receivables do not carry any nlerest and are staled al therr amortised cost net of impaiment loss allowances. Where
there 1s clear evidence that the receivable will not be recovered the balance 15 wrnitten off it full Non-financiai assets
included within trade and other recevables (note 127 include contract assets. prepayments and other {ax receivables.

Bank borrowings

Interest-beanng tank loans and overdrafts are recorded al the amount of the proceeds received net of diwect 1ssue costs
and are subsequently held at amortised cost Direclissue costs are amartised over the period of the debt or facilty. Finance

charges are accounted for on an accruals basis to the mcome statement using the effective mierest method and are acded
to the carrying amount of the instrurment {0 the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they anse
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Northgate Information Solutions L.imited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 {continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other shor-term maonetary habilities are inibally recorded at therr farr value and subseguently carmed at
amortised cosl using the effective interest method Non-finangial labilties within trade and other payables (note 20) include
deferred revenue accruais as well as other taxation and social secunty

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Dervative financial instruments are recognised on the Group s balance sheet at far value The Group has not appled hegge
accounling - as permitted under IFRS @ - and changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in
the income statement as they arse

Denvative instruments utihsed by the Group fram time o tme inciude interest rate anc foregn currency swaps with no
active derivative contracts open al the vear end. The Group does not enter into speculative denivative contracts All such
instruments are used far hedging purposes to alter the nsk prohile of an existing underlying exposure of the Group in line with
the Group's risk management policies

Share Capitat

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attnbutabie to ssue of ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from
eguity

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property. plant and equipment 1s stated at cost iess any apphcadle discounts less accumuiated depreciation and imparment
losses Depreciation s proviged at rates calculated (o wnte down the cost of property. plant ang equipment over ther

eshmated useful hves on a straight-tne basis

The annual rates of depreciation, by category of fixed asset, are as follows

« Short leasehald mprovements Life of the lease
« Fiztures and fitings 2~ 10 years

« Plant and office eguipment 2 - 10 years

= Moltor vehucies 4 years

Al each balance sheel date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 11s tangible assets to detenmine whether there 15 any
ingication that those assets have suffered an impawrment Residuat values remaming useful hves and depreciation methods
are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprnise cash balances and call deposits Bank overdrafs that are repayable on demand and
form an ntegral part of the Group s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows

Leased Assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substanuaily all the risks and rewards of
ownerstip to the lessee Al other leases are classified as operaling leases
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Leased Assets (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are included in the balance sheet at farr value or f lower at the present value of the
minmum lease payments, each determined at inception of the lease less depreciation and impaiment losses. These assels
are depreciated . accordance with the Group s normai accounting policy for the ciass of asset concerned or over the penod
of the iease «f shorter. The present value of future rentals 1s shown as a liability. The interest element of rental obhgations 15
charged tc the income statement over the penod of the lease in proportion to the balance of capital repayments cutstanding
Finance charges are charged directly against income

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the ncome statement on a straright-line pasis over the penod of the
lease Lease incentives received are recegnised in the income stalement as an integral part of the tolal lease expense.

Net Financing Costs

Net fimancing costs compnse interest payable interest on the definea benefit pension plan obligations and expected return
or pension scheme assets (logether referred (o as net pension finance expense). amortisation of issue costs on borfowings
interest receivable on funds invested. foreign exchange gains and losses and gains and losses on hedging instruments that
are recognised in the income statement

Interest income and nterest payable 1s recogmised in the income statement as 1t accrues, using the effective interest
method

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

Tax currently payable s based on taxable profit for the period using rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet dale and any adjusiment fa tax payable in respect of previous years Taxabte profit differs from net profit as reporled in
the income statement because 1l excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and habities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes and is accounted for using the balance sheet lLiability
method Deferred tax habilities are recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are recognised
to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilsed The following temporary differences are not provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes. the mtial
recognition of assets or habilties that affect nether accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to Investments in
subsidigres to the extent that they will probabiy not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying ameunt of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance shee! date and reduced fo the extent that it 1s no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaiable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calcuialed at the tax rates enacted orf substantially enacied at the balance sheet date Deferred tax s
charged or credited in the income statement except when it relates 1o items charged or credited directly to equity, In which
case the deferred {ax is also mcluded within equity,

Retirement Benefit Costs

The Group operates a number of defined contnibution pension scherngs The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in independently acministered funds The amounts charged fo the income statement represent the
contributions payable to the schemes in respect of the accounung period

During the pnor year the Group also operated twe defined benefit pension schemes untit the sale of the UK MM & SMB
pusinesses on 31 January 2018 at which point they were transferred with the disposed entities. The Group s net gbligation
in respect of defined benefit plans was calculated separately for each plan by estmating the amount of the future benefit that
employees have earmned in the current and pnor pericds. discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets
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Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 {continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement Benefit Costs (continued)

The calculation of defined benefit obligations was performed at least annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit
credet methed When the calculation resuits in a potential asset for the Group the recognised asset was hroted to the
present value of economic benefits avadable in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan To calculate the present value of the ecanomic benefils consideration was grven to any applicatile
mrsmum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit lability which comprise actuanal gains and losses the return on plan assels
(excluding interest} and the effect of the asset ce:hng (if any excluding interest). are recogrised immediately 10 other
comprehensive iIncome The Group determines the net Interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit hability {asset)
for the penod by applying the discount 13ie used 1o measure the defined benefil obhigation at the beginming of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit habsity (asset] taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit habilty
(asset) dunng the pencd as a result of contnbutions and bereft payments

Net interest expense and other expenses related to the defined benefit plans are recogrused in the profit and l0ss. When the
penefits of a plan are changed or when a plan 1s curtalled, the resulting change In benefit that relates 1o past service or the
gain or loss on curlailmeant was recogmsed immediately in profit or loss The Group recogmses gains and iosses on the
seitiement of a defined benefit plan when the settliement occurs The Group aiso continues (0 operate two further small
cdefined benefit schemes in respect of its subsidiaries i the Philippines

Provisions

Provisions artse fror iegal or constructive obhigations resulting fram a past event where expected costs can De assessed
with reasonable certamty and it 1s probable that an cutfiow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation If the
effect 15 matenal, the provision 1s getermmed by discounting the expected future cash flows

Property provisions
A property provision is recogrised when the expected benefits to be genved from the property are lower than the
unavoidable cost of meeting the contractual abiigatiors an that property

Restructuring provisions
A provision for restructunng s recognised when the Group has approved a detalled and formal restructunng plan and the
restructunng has either commenced or has been announced pubhcly Future operating costs are not provided for

Contract Losses
A prowvision for contract losses s recognised on orerous contracts that are expected to make ret losses for the remainder cf
the contract term after takang into consideration imparment of contract assets.

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year
Impac!t of apphcation of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In the current year the Group has applied IFRS 15 Revenue fram Centracts with Customers (as amended in Apn| 2016,
which 1s effective for an annual penod that begins an or after 1 January 2018 The Group s accounting policies for its
revenue streams are disclosed in detait it Note 1. As well as providing more extensive disclosures for the Group s revenrue
transactions the application of IFRS 15 has had a significant impact on the financial positon and financial perfarmance of
the Group

This was compieted in accordance with the fully retrospectve transitional approach without using the practical expecients for
completed contracts in IFRS 15 CH{a) and (b) or for modified contracts in IFRS 15 C5(c) but using the expedient in IFRS
15 C5{d; allawing both nan-dssclosure of the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaning performance
obligations. and an explanation of when it expects to recogmise that amount as revenue for all reporting pencds presented
befgre the date of initval application 1 e 1 May 2018

IFRS 15 uses the terms ‘contract asset and contracl habihty to describe what might more cammonly be known as
accrued revenue and deferred revenue however the Standard does not probibit an entity fram using alternative
descriptions in the statement of financial postian and the Group has elected to descnbe them as accrued revenue and
ceferred revenue with clanfication of the nature of the talance [implememtation licences ciher;
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Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2018 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New and amended IFRS Standards that are effective for the current year (continued)

impact of apphcation of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

IFRS 15 introduced 2 5-slep approach to revenue recognition Far more prescnptive guidance has been added in IFRS 1510
deai wath specific scenanos such as incrementa! costs of obtaimng a contract, cosls directly related 1o fulfiling contracts

dealing with licences matenal nghis of customers to future services and vanable consideration Impact of the new
requifements on the Group's consolidated financial statements are described in Note 32. There has been no impact on the
standaione Company balance sheet

Impact of apphcation of (IFRS 8 Financal Instruments

IFRS 8 has been adopted with effect from 1 May 2018 There were no changes to previously pubiished accounting policies
or any financial adjustment required as a result

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

Al the cate of authonsation of these financial staternents. The Group has not applied the foilowing new andg revised

[FRS Standards that have been issued but are not yet effective and had not yet been adopted by the EU

T
i

IFRS 16

Leases

. Amendments 1o IFRS 8

Prepayment Features with Negalive Compensation

, NG IAS 8

i Amengments 1o 1AS 18

Amendments to 1AS 1

. Amendmenis 1o IFRS 3 | New definition of ‘Business n Business Combinations

New definition of Materal’

| Amended by "Plan Amendment Curaikment or Seflement

IFRIC 23 :

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmenis

. Annuai Improvements lo | Clanfication of IFRS 3 Business Combinations, IFRS 13 Joint Arrangements,

I
[P,

IFRS 16 Leases s likely to have a material impact on the content of the accounts in future  The other changes are not

* IFRS Standards 2015—

2017 Cycle .

IAS 12 income Taxes and IAS 23 Borrowing Costs

expected to have a material impact on the accounts

IFRS 16 will be effective for the Group accounts from the year ending 30 April 2020 onwards The standard provides a

single lessee accounting model. requining lessees to recogrise assets and hatilities for ail leases unless the lease term s 12

months or Jess or the underlying asset has a low value Operating lease cammitments will be brought onto the balance

sheel as fixed assets ang iease liabiities and depreciated or amortised respectively. 1ths expected that on the Statement of
Financial Positicn both property plant and machinery as well as fnance lease habibties will increase by petween £18m and
£20m but with nompact on the overall net assels of the Group. Impacts to the income statermnent are not expected 1o be
material and there 15 not likely to be any net impact on cash flows aithough presentation of both accounting statements are

likely to change. Management has systemns for management of finance leases and 1s already planmng for the transition

The change n lessor accounting 1s not expecied to be matenal

Dividends

Dwidenos unpaid at the batance sheet date are only recognised as a lability at that date to the extent that they are
appropnately authonsed and are no jonger at the discretian of the Company Unpaid dividends that do not meet these

critena are disclosed in the notes to the accounts
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

Subsidiaries’ exemption from audit

The following UK subsidiaries are exempt from audit of iIndividual accounts for the year ended 30 Aprit 2019 under sechon

479A of the Companes Act 2006 in accordance with which MNorthgate information Solutions Lmited (the intermediate
parent underlaking) provides a guarantee for habihties,

Compeny Name . . Registered . Registered Ofice sddress
’ compeny
nuher
Annso People Services Limited 028194491 Peoplebudding 2 Maylands Avenue Hemel Hermpstead Hertfordsiire, HP2 ANV, Uniled saingaom
Annso UK Lirmted 03487776 Penpleburiding 2 Maylards Avenue Hemet Hempstead Herffordshire HP2 4NW Lniled namgdon
NIS Acquisitions Limited 06442578 Peoplenwiding 2 Maylards Avenue Hemel Hempstead Serffordshire, HPZ SNW Uniled Kingoon
M Recewaties No 7 Limited 06544183 Peoplebuiting 2, Maylands Avenue Hemel Hempstead erfordshrg =492 4NW uniteg Kingdom
NiS Recewvables No 2 Limiled 06442587 Peoplebuwlding 2, Maylands Averue Hemel Hempstead Herfordshire, HP2 4NW Unided Kingdom
Northgate UK Carmpany 02138781 Pegplebutding 2 Maylands Avenue Hernel Hempstead merforgshre HPZ 4NW Urited Kugaom
Rebus Group Limited 03109650 Pecplebutlang 2 Maylands Avenue Heme! Hempstead Hertfordshre HP2 aNW Uniteqg Kingdom
Rehys Holdings L:mied 02980656 Peoplebuidng 2 Mayiands Avenye Heine Hempsleag Hoerfigrdshire HPZ AN Uated <ieguyre
Rebus HR Hotdings Lmued B3719763 Peopiebuiding 2 Maviangs Avenue Heme Hempstead Henfurdshre HPZGNW Unaed <ingdom
Kebus HR Managernent Limited 23819950 Peoplebulding 2 Maytands Avenue Meme' Bemostead merfordshre HPZ ANW United fiogdon:
Rebys Human Resource Sennces, N30T 7589 Peoplabulding 2 Maylands Avenus Heme! Hempstead MHerttordghre HPZ ANY Unitea Kirtgdom
Limited
Rebus Human Resaurces Limned 00772341 Peoplebuakling 2 Mayanrgs Avenug Hemel Hempslead Hedfordshee =Bz AN winted Singdor:
Rebus Software Limndea (12648639 Pecplebulding 2 Maylands Avenoe Hemel Hempstead Hedfordshie HEY ANA Utited Kiogden,

Subsidiaries’ exemption from statutory accounts preparation and fijing

The tollowing UK subsidianes are also exempt from the preparation of individual entity statutory accounts wnder s384A
Compames Act 2006) and the filing of those accounts [under s448A Compames Act 2006 for the year ended 30 April 2019
n accordance with which Nortngate Information Solutions Limited (the \ntermediate parent underiaking: provides 2
guarantee for hablhtes.

Company Name Registered Ragistered Office address
company
number
Annso People Serices Lirmiled 4815441 RPeoplebuiding 2 Maylands Avenue Hemel mempstead Hertiordsre HP2 4NW Umiten K.rgdom
Retus Human Respurce Senvices NIn~7589 Peoplebuiiding 7 Maylands Avenug Hemel Hempstead Herfordshire HPZ ANW Urateg Reagdom
Lirmiterd
Annso UK Limted C348777¢ Peoptebulding & hMaylands Avene Meme Hompstead Herfordshre P2 3hd umteg Woegdo.
Rebus HR Holdings Limilec G3719768  Peopiebunding 2 Mayiands Avenue Hemel Men pstead Hurlfordstire HPZ A4NW Urited kangdom
Rebus Software Limited 02646838  Peoplebuidng 2 Maylands Avenug Hemel Hempsiead Martordshea (P ANW Jotes Kanadae
Rebus Group Limiteg Q310GESD Peoplebuiding 2. Mayiands Avenue Bamel Sempstegn bofordshre =P7 ANW Jed Kingdo
Neoribgale UK Company 02138787 Peopebuiding 2. Maylands Averug Heme hempdtead Herforgshite =52 48 Joited kangdom

2. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 Aprif 2019

The Group recogrused £0 6m gain on disposals related o true up of estimiates for ransactions compleled m earkier years
Year ended 30 April 2018

Disposai of the UK MM & SMB businesses

On 31 January 2018, the Group disposed of the UK MM & SMB businesses for a cash consideration of £436.6m and
recognised 2 loss on disposal of £7 2m

As part of the disposal goodwilt 0f £41¢ 8m acquired intangibles of £25 9m defined benefit pension hability of £58 9m and
cash of £3 2m were also dispnsed of
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Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)
2. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 30 April 2018 (continued)

Disposal of the UK MM & SMB businesses {continued)
Loss on disposal

- ~ Notes £m
Consideration 432.6
Payment for intercompany liabiities (70.9)
Fees {13.2)
Cisposal of googwil 9 (419.8)
Disposal of acquired intargivles 9 {25.9)
Disposal of net habihtes 914
QOther (1.4)
Loss on disposal (7.2)

The profit for current and prior year from giscontinued operations s shown on the Group Income Statement on page 11

Other
{a) On 11 January 2018, the Group disposed of NGA Benefils Singapore Pte Limited for a cash consideration of SGD 6 8m

(£3 5m) and recognised a profit on disposal of £1 Zm

Loss on disposal

£m
Caonsideration 35
Fees {0.2)
Disposal of net assels . o 2.1}
Profl on disposal 1.2

(p} The Group recagrnised £0 9m gain on disposals related 1o true up of estimates for transacuons completed in earlier
years

3. REVENUE

Disaggregation of continuing revenue:
Year ended Year ended

36 April 30 Apni

2019 2018

S £m £m
Payrall selup and services 2139 2107
Coensulting senices 74.3 66 4
Sale of licences 2.7 26
" 290.9 279.7

Remaining performance obligations:

The transaction pnce allocated to (partiaily) unsatisfied performance obigations at 30 Aprd 2019 are as set out below As
permitted under the transitionat provisions in IFRS 15, the transaction prce allocated 10 (parially) unsatisfied performance
obhgations as of 30 Apnl 201815 not disclosed

Management expects that 27% of the ransaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts as of the year ended 2019 will be
recognised as revenue dunng the next reporing perioc (£246m} and 73% in laler years {(E675m).

30 April 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 and
beyond
Timing of revenue recognition 27% 20% 18% 13% 25%
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Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

4. OPERATING LOSS

Group cperating loss 15 stated after charging/icrediting)

Year ended

30 Aprd

Year ended 2018

0 Aprif 2019 [Restated)

. e - S fm_ £m
Staff costs

- wages and salanes 158.8 2176

- social security costs 221 269

- gther pension costs defined contribytion 2.3 43

- other pension costs defined benefit - current year service cost 0.5 i1

Research and development - expenditure not capitalsed 3.0 51

Operating lease remals - propesty rentals 8.2 101

Operating lease rentals — plant & equspment and others 4.5 49

Depreciation of owned assets 2.8 46

Deprecatwon of assets held under finance leases 14 20

Amortisaton of development costs and purchased software 18.1 215

Amgortisation of acqguired mlangibles 2.3 2058

impairment of goodwilt 157 500

tmparrment of other intangible assets 14 -

Other Income (4.6} 14 3)

l.oss on disposal of fixed assels . 49

{Profit)/loss on saie of subsidiary {note 2} (0.6) 51

_S.M_i_ganl restruciunng and properly Qrovisions _ 548 AR]

The significant restructunng and property provision costs retate to the Group $ well progressed cost reducticn grogramme
and efficiency transformation programme for operabons which are categonised as follows
Year ended Year ended

30 April 30 Apry

2019 2018

‘Significant restructuring and property provisions o o Em  Em
Severance and restructuning 2.9 67
Consultancy fees 2.8 09
Contract termination costs 6.1 0+
Property provisions 24 T8
Imparment of JV Investiments - 24
— , e e T

Vihthin operating costs are the fees pad to the Auditor and thetr associates which are categonsed as follows

Year ended Year ended

30 Aprit 30 Apr

2019 2018

Auditor's remuneration Em  im
Audit of these financial statements 0.2 02
Audit of financial statements of subsidiares 0.1 05
Taxation compliance services - 01
Tax advisory services - -
Transaction Services - 12
Cther assurance services o - L)

0.3 28

Amounts paid to the Company s Audilor In respect of services to the Company other than the audd of the Company s
financial staterments have not beer disclosed as the informaton required 1s instead disclosed on a consoibdated basis
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Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 {continued)

5. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Year ended Year ended

30 April 30 Aprid

2019 2018

o _ o £m £m
Direclors emoluments 20 20

The aggregale ematuments of the highest paid director were £1 310 409 {2018 £1 007 297, A1 30 Apnl 2018, no directors
(30 April 2018 no directors) had benefils accruing under a defined benefit pension scheme and one director (30 Apnt 2018
no director; Nad benefits accruing under a money purchase pension plan

6. NET FINANCING COSTS
Year ended Year ended

30 April 30 Apri

2619 2018

£m £m

Interest (ncome — bank ang other interest recevable 0.1 20
Financial income 0.1 20
Inlerest expense - bank icans and overdrafts - cash spend 1.7 188
interest expense - bank loans and overdrafis ~ accrued 11 03
Non-cash bank lgan inlerest — added to loan 0.7 15.4
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 0.4 249
Net foreign exchange losses/currency denvatives 1.3 16.4
Finance charges payable under finance leases 0.5 08
Net pension finance expense (note 18 L - 1.2
Financial expenses 5.7 740

Nel financing Costs 5.6 729

7. STAFF NUMBERS

The average number of persons employed by the Group including Executive Directors duning the year was as follows

Year ended Year ended

30 April 30 Apri

2019 2018

Number Number

Sales 117 123
Delivery 3,935 4 136
Support 875 1.074

5,027 5.333
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

8. TAX (CREDIT)VEXPENSE

The credt for the year comprises

Year ended Year ended

30 Aprit 30 Aprit
2079 2018
£m £m
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax 3.0
Overseas tax ~ current year charge 3.4 47
Overseas tax ~ adjustment for prior years (0.3) 16
Total current tax expense 6.1 623
Deferred tax credit (see note 15)
Deferred tax — current (8.7} (283
Deterred tax ~ rate change agjustment - (11
Deferred tax — adsiments for prior years (2.2) o7
Total deferred tax crecit {10.9} {32
Total tax {creditiexpense in income statement

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Year ended Year ended

30 Aprii 30 April

2019 2018

(Restated,;

- L o . £fm £m
Loss before tax (25.4) (144 )
Tax on toss at UK corporation tax rate of 19% {4.9) (27 4)
Permanent differences 11.3 49 8
{Profit)/iLoss on disposais not taxable (0.1) {16 0)
Effect of aifferent rates for overseas tax (0.1) G 2)
Deferred tax not recogrised (7.0) {4 3)
Tax rate change effect on deferred tax . 12
Other {1.6) 124
Adjustments for pnoc years {2.5) 22

Total tax charge/{credit)

Deferred tax credit recognised directly in equity

{4.8) 31

Year ended Year ended

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension schemes

30 April 30 Aprif
2019 2018

o EM £m
- 08

Reductions in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% (effective from 1 Apnl 2015) to 18% effective from 1 Apnl 2017 and to
18% (effective 1 April 2020} wore substantively enacted on 26 QOctober 2015 An addihonal reduction 1o 17%, effective from
1 April 2020) was announced it the Budget on 16 March 2018 The geferred tax asset atl 30 April 2019 has been calcutated

based on these rates
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Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2018 (continued}

9. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Acquired Other
Goodwilf intangibles intangibles Toial
£m £m _Em _£m
Cost:
At 1 May 2077 5280 3505 177 5 1056 0
Revaiyation of foreign dencminated goddwil 47 - - 47
Exchange differences - {1.4) {14)
Reciassifications 13 113
Addiions - - 248 248
Disposals L (419.8) (283 8) (105.3) (808.9)
At 30 Aprii 2018 1129 66.7 106.9 286.5
At T May 2018 1129 66.7 106.9 286.5
Revaluation of foreign denominated goodwili (12) - (1.2}
Exchange differences - 17 17
Addiligns 141 14 1
Disposals - - (19.2} (19.2)
At30 April 2018 - _ _ Avr 687 103§ _..ee1e
Amortisation and impairment fosses: B T T I .
AL T May 2017 301.8 1213 4231
Exchange differences - (10} (10
Amorsation - 205 215 420
Impairment 10ss {Restated) 50.0 - - 5600
Reclassifications R R 01 01
Disposals - (257 9) (80 2) (338 1)
At 30 April 2018 {Restated) 50.0 64.4 61.7 176.1
AT May 2018 50.0 64.4 61.7 176.1
Exchange differences . 18 18
Amorysation - 23 181 204
Imparment foss 157 - 1.4 17 1
Disposals - - (19.2) (19.2)
At3o April 2018 - 65.7 66.7 63.8 1986.2
Net book value:
At 30 April 2015 - 46.0 397 85.7
629 23 452 110 4

At 30 Aprl 2018 (Restated}

Other ntanaibles compnse purchased and deveioped software
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9. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS {continued)
mpairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Cash-generating units containing goodwill are subject to annual imparment reviews of carrying value as compared 1o the
recoverable value

Al the start of the previous financial year the Group had 2 CGUs. Enterpnise {providing large scale HR soiutions to
nternational compan:es with 3 or more geographies) and UK (providing HR and Payrolt software and services to UK &
irefand based companies), In January 2018 the Group disposed of the UK CGU leaving the Enterprise CGU only

I 2019 the recoverable amount of the Enterprise CGU was deterrmined from s farr value less costs to sell This was based
on the external valuation received as part of the sales process which finally resulted in the sale of ts subsig:anes to Alight
Solutions on 1st November 2018 (see note 30). The resulbing impairment ientfied of £19 3m nas been reflected in the
cusrem year

In 2018 the recoveratle amount of the Enterprise CGU was determined from vaiue-in-use calculations which use discounted
pre-tax cash flows from approved budgets and three year forecasts and extiapolated cash flows for the penods beyond
these using estimated long term growth rates The key assumptions are

+ Long term average growth rates are used to extrapolate cash flows Growth rates are deterrmined wilh reference o
mnternal approved budgets and forecasts

+ Discount rates are calculated separately for each CGU and reflect 1the Indivigua! nature and specific risks retating 1o the
market In which Il operates.

» Margins are based on past performance and management s expectations of markel development No improvements 1o
margins beyond perods covered by approved dudgets and forecasts have been assumed

The final assumplions used were a pre-tax discount rate used of 11 7% wih 5 years of forecasts and a terminal growlh rate
of 2.5%

Dunng the review and auadit of other group companies for the year ended 30 Apnl 2C'8 1t came to management s attention
that the discount rate used 10 calculate the value 10 use of the business and therefore the value of goodwill was oo low Use
of the correct pre-lax discount rate of 21 2% resulted in an addit.onal impaiment 10 goodwill of £49 95m for the pror year
{see note 31)

The sensdivity of the recoverable amount based on value-in-use calculanon to changes 1IN key assumphons s set out below

Assumption Change in assumption impact on recoverable amount
Lang term average growth rate Decrease by 0 5% Decrease by £2 G5m

Pre-tax discount rate increagse by 1% Decrease by £6 8m

EBITDA Decrease by 1% Decrease by £2 3m

At the end of the current financiat year all intangibles relating to customer relationships technology-based assets and
markeling reiated assets have been fully amortisea
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

10. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixtures fittings.
Leasehoid equipment and

improvemerits motor vehucles Totai

. £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 May 2017 4.2 68.4 726
Exchange adjustments (o (0.4) (0.5)
Agaitions 02 28 3.0
Reclassdicatons 0.1 (10.9) {10 83
Disposais (1.2} (24 6) (25.8)
At 30 Apri! 2018 32 353 38.5
At 1t May 2018 3.2 353 385
Exchange adjusiments 01 0.6 07
Additions 1.1 08 19
Disposals (0.1) (29) (30}
At 30 April 2019 4.3 338 38.1
Depreciation and impairment losses:
At 1 May 2017 22 410 43.2
Exchange adjuskments (0.1} {1.3) {1 4)
Depreciation charge for the year ] 62 6.6
Disposals - {19.9) (19 9)
At 30 April 2018 25 26.0 285
At 1 May 2018 25 26.0 285
Exchange adjustments 03 {0.5) {0.2)
Depreciation charge for the year 04 39 43
Disposals (0.1) {2.8) (2.9}
At 30 Aprit 2019 3.1 26.6 29.7
Net book value:
At 30 April 2019 1.2 7.2 8.4
At 30 Apnl 2018 0.7 9.3 100

The net book value of property plant and equipment 1s not matenally different from the farr value.
The net book valug of tangible assets under finance lease 1s £2 1m (2018 £2.4m) and the gepreciation charge on these
assels was £1 4m for the year (2018 £2 D)

14, INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

All of the Group s 50% helding in NGA Africa {Propnetary) Limited was sold to the joint venture partner during the year and
the Group has no investments in associates and joint ventures at 30 Apnl 2019 There was no profit or toss on disposal.

Anmpanment for the full value of the Group s 50% holding 1in NGA Africa (Propnetary) Limited was charged during the
previous year
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
(Restated)
. . — e Em__Am
Non-current assets

Accrued revenue (note 13} T4 28
Deferred costs tc fulfii contracts (note 14) 44.1 522
Deferred costs 10 obtain contracts (note 14) 11 09
Otner receivables and prepaymenis 7 e 2.2 25
54.8 584

Current assets T ‘
Trade recevables 43.5 46 3
Tax recoverabie 2.5 12
Unamortised 8sue cast on revolving credit facdity (note 17) ¢9 13
Accrued revenue {nole 13) 16.3 192
Deferred costs 10 futfil contracts (note 14) 29.3 208
Beferred costs to obtan contracts (note 14) 0.7 03
Other recervables and prepayments 9.7 83

1029 97 4

Issue costs assoviated with loans and facilitres are capilaised and aliocated 10 the income statement at a constant rate
on the carrying amount or faciity

13. ACCRUED REVENUE

2019 2018

[Restated)

] ) £m £m
Opening Balance 2?29 9.2
impairment / Derecogrition due to termination - (25)
Utihsed duning the year {14.9) (15 4)
Aaditions . o B 1§i o 201
Closing Balance 237 ¢ 0
Current 16.3 192
Non-current B 7.4 28
Closing Balance 237 220

Amounts relating to contract assets carmprise
1) Accrued revenue for licences: balances due from customers under fong term contracts that anse when
the Group seMs a thirg-party licence on an agent commussion basis that will be pilied to the customer
over time These balances are reclass:fied to trade receivables at the point ot invowcing and
") Other Accrued revenue: Senvices provided to customer before the corsideration 1s due

For loss allowance on contract assetls see nole 24
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

14. CONTRACT COSTS

(a) Costs o fulfil contracts

2019 2018
Current 293 208
Non-current 44 1 52.2
Closing Balance h ' o 13.4 73.0

Costs 10 fulfit contracts are costs direcily atnbutabie to satisfying future peformance obhgations These costs are
amertised on a straight-hne basis over the period of the related performance obhgation. as this reflects the penod aver
which the benefit 1s deltvered 1o the customer  In 2019 amortisation amoeunting to £17 3m (2018 £20.5m) was
recogrised as parl of cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

Management reviewed the contract assets for mparrment and hence the above batance includes £1 1rm (2018 £2 0m)
provision for imparment. No tmpairment losses (2018 nil) were recognised during the year

(b} Costs to obtain contracts (commission)

2019 2018
Current 07 03
Non-current 1.1 g
Closing Balance 18 12

Costs 1o obtain contracts relate lo incremental commission fees paid tc employees as a result of obtaining sales
contracts These cosis are amorlised on a straight-line basis over the period of the contract as this reflects the penod
over which the benefit is delivered to the customer In 2019 amortisation amounting to £0.3m (2018 £0 1m; was
recogrused as parn of cost of sales in the censoldated statement of profil or loss. There was no impairment loss In
relation o the costs capitalised

15. DEFERRED TAX

The Group s deferred tax s atirbutable to the following

Assets Liabilities Net
2019 2018 20138 2078 2018 2017
S £m __Em £fm = £m £m  £im
Intangible assets - - (7.7) (80 {(7.7) (8 0)
Property. plant and eguipment 2.8 14 - - 28 14
Trading losses 126 34 - - 12.6 34
Employee beneflits - - . . _ A
Provisions and other tirming differences . - - - -
Financial habshlies - - - - -
15.4 7.7 32)

Net tax assets{liabilities)

Deferred tax assels and habithes are presented separately on the balance sheet

The Group has gross unutiised trading losses carmed forward of £124m (2018 £96.5m). predommnately non-UK and
gross unutitsed non-trading losses and excess management expenses camed forwvard of approxmmately £370m (2018
£379m) A deferred tax asset of £12.6m (2018 £3 4m) was recognised in respect to tax losses where 1t 1s probable that
future taxable profits will be available agans! which the Group can utiise these benefits
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019 (continued)

15, DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Future tax law developments that will impact the Group's tax position

There are no new gevelopments significantly impacting the Group since publishing the Annual Report for the year ended 30
Apnl 2019

Movement in temporary differences during the year ended 30 April 2019

Balance
Balance at  Recogmused  Recogrised at 30
! May 18 i income n eqinly Dispasais April 19
£ £m £m £m £m
— et p—— m - — B
Intangible assets (8.0) 03 - - (7.7
Property. plaril and egupment 1.4 14 - - 238
Trading losses 3.4 g2 - 12.6
Employee benefits - . . . .
Provisions and other tirming differences - -
Financial iiabiites -
(32) 109 . - 7.7
Movement in temporary differences during the year ended 30 April 2018
Balance at Recognised Recogrised Baiance at 30
T May 17 inincome i equily Disposals April 18
- . e ) e Em Em &
Intangibie assels (20 4y 61 - 63 (8 0y
Property. plant and equipment 892 (33) - {4 5} 14
Trading iosses 23 14 . (0 34
Employee benefits 35 : 08 (103)
Provisions and other timing differences 07 (0 6) - (01
Financial atilities 04 (0 4) -
17 32 08 {8 9) 132)
16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2019 2018
o B . ) Em £m
Casb at bank and in hand 132 18 3
Cash and cash equivalenis in the cash flow statement 132

183
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2018 (continued)

17. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2019 2018
Em £m
Non-current liabilities
Subordinated ivans from associated undertakings - 6.8
Other 10ans 0.6 15
Finance lease liabiilies 3.6 55
4.2 138
Current liabilities
Subordinated loans from associated undertakings 78 .
Other secured toans 0.6 1.0
Other ioans 09 0.7
Finance lease habilites 3.5 49

12.8 66

Secured pank loans remain il at 30 April 2019 as the revolving credit facibty was not ubhised dunng the year. Group bank
loans are stated gross before unamortised 1ssue costs of £0 9m (2018 £1.3m) which are included n trade and other
recevables (note 12} tssue costs tcgether with the interest expenses. are allocated 1o the income statement at a constant
rate on the carrying amount or faciiity Bank ioans and facilities are subject to the following covenant restriction.

+ Ratio of Earrmings before interest and tax (EBITDA; 1o net debt

All covenants are based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS") Faiure 1o meet the covenant restrictions
results in all amounts outstanding, becoming immediately due and payable. There have been no breaches in covenants in
the year or since the inception of the loans

The Group has Sener facility agreements with a small number of banks The Group s net bank loans and revolving credit
facility are secured by a cross guaraniee and a fixed and floating charge over the assets of Northgate Information Solutions
Limited and its materal subsidianies. Cash mierest on the loans 1s payabtle on the (oans at LIBOR or EURIBOR plus a
margin of 3.5%. Other secured loans are amounts due to a third party under a financing arrangement which are secured on
German US and Belgian trade receivables This facility can provide up o £15m addihonal hquidity for the Group

Of these facdities the Group has the foliowing available commuitted floating rate borrowing facilities at 30 Apni 2016 in
respec! of which all conditions precedent had been met at that date

2018 2018
£m £m
Revolving credit faciity expiring «n 2 to 4 years
- ameunt used . -
- amourt unused 2318 24 6
Total 238 246
Facility secured on trade receivables expining in 2 to 4 years
- amaunt used 06 10
~ amount unused 14 4 140
,TQ‘,?? 15.0 15.0
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17. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS (continued)

Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease llabilities are payable

Minimum Mimum

lease fease
payments Interest  Principal paymenis interest Prncipal
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£m £ £m £m £m £m
Less than one year 38 0.3 15 57 01 56
Between ane and five years 38 0.2 36 76 0e 70
7.6 0.5 71 133 o7 126

Under the terms of the lease arrangerments no contingent rents are payable. There are na finance lease Labilibes payabie in

excess of five years.

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The defined benefit pension hatulity batance 15 zero as at the year endg (2018 Nil} as the entire balance was part of the

digposal of certan subsidianes dunng the previous year.

Movements in the net defined benefit liability

The follawing table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances (o the closing balances for the net defined henefit and

its compongnts

Defined benefit Fair value of plan Net defined benefit
obligation assets liability
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
e £m__ Em £m  im_ Em  Em
Balance at T May - 2789 - (222 9} - 56.0
included in income statement
Current service cost - 11 - - 0.5 11
Interest cost - - 41 - 12
Running costs - . 03 R 03
. 64 . (3.8) 0.3 26
Included in statement of comprehensive
income
Remeasurement loss (gan)
Actuanal ioss (gain} ansing from,
Finanicial assumptions . 13 . {0.4) 53
Experience Adjustment - 05 - - 05
Return on plan assets excluding interest 25
INCome ) -
. 18 - 25 {0.4) 43
Other
Contributions pad by the empioyer R ) - (4.2) N (42
Benefis paid - (7 1) - 7 -
Disposals {280 0) - 2213 - (58 7)
- (287 1) - 2242 - (62.9)
- 0.1 .

AL 30 Apri
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Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 Aprii 2018 {continued)

18. EMPL.OYEE BENEFITS {continued)

The Group has a small defined pension obligation in respect of employees based in the Philippings Due to the immaternial

nature of the obligation no detalled disclosures have been suppled

Defined contribution arrangements

The Group alse operates vanous defined contnbution arrangements for its UK and overseas employees The contribubions
payable to defined contnbution schemes amounted to £1m (2018 £0 6m)

19. PROVISIONS

Property Other

DroviSIONS prowisions Total

£m £m £m

Al t May 2018 (Restated) 1.6 03 19

Recognised in the income statement 02 - 02

Uulised in the perod i } ) ... e (1) (10

At 30 April 2019 0.9 0.2 BK]
Current 086

Non-current ... e e 03 02 )

At 30 April 2019 0.9 0.2 1.1

Current 7 01 08

Non-current 09 0.2 11

A1 30 April 2018 1.6 03 19

Property proviSions

The prowvision relates to Group properbes that have either been sublet or are vacant It consists of the discounted value of
the differential Detween future llabiities on the property less any expected future suble! recepts exlrapoiated 10 the earhest
preak point in the contract In additon. there 1s a dilapidations provision for costs to make property gooc at the end of the

iease 11 respect of all properties with leases expinng within the next three years

Other provisions

Other provisions include amounts provided relaling to empleyment obhgations

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2019 2018
(Restated)
£m £m

Non-current assets
Deferred revenue (note 21) 186 49 1
Accruals 5.1 25
43.7 516

Current liabilities

Trade payables 153 13 4
Deferred revenue (note 21) 37.4 215
Accruais 492 50.4
Social secunty and other taxation 93 150
Other payables 50 19
116.2 1022
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21. DEFERRED REVENUE

2019 2018

N ~ R £m o £m

Opemng Balance 70.6 800
Imparment / Derecogmition dué to termination (1.9} -
Utiised during the year {21 1) {36 6)
Additions - o ) - ) 28 4 27.2
Closing Balance 76.0 706
Current 37.4 215
Non-current o L ~ ) L 386 491
Closing Batance 76.0 706

Amounts relating 10 contract habihities comprise
0 Deferred revenue for implementation: until the point that the Groug 1s delivenng the distinct performance
obligation 1o the customer no revenue will be recogrised Therefore the invoices raised up te the go lve date
are deferred The Labdity unwinds ovec the hfe of the contractual perfarmance otiligation to which it relates
it) Other Deferred revenue: Amounts invoiced to customers where the service 1s not yet completed

22. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of ine Company 15 as follows 2019 2018

Callec up and {ully pard
605,300.339 ordmary shares of £0 01 each (2018. 605,300 339 ordmary shares of £0 01
each) 6.1 61

The holders of ordinary shares are enfitled lo receve dividends from time 1o time and are entitied to one vole per share at
meetings of the company

On 28 July 2016 the company 1ssued 497 136, 198 shares which were settled using the company s capital contribution

reserve On the same day the nominal vaiue of each share was reduced to £0.01 and the proceeds used to create
distributable reserves of £831 8m

23. NET DEBT

Net debt includes cash and cash egquivalents secured bank loans and loan notes and finance lease hablities

2019 2018

e _ . MNotes , _Em CEm

Cash and cash equivalents 16 13.2 183
Secured bank loans and foan notes — current 17 (0.6} (10}
~ nan-current 17 - -

Subordinated ivans from associated undenakings — current 17 {7.8) -
- non current 17 - (6 8}

Finance lease habiliies - current 17 (3.5) (4 9
— non-current 17 (3.5} (55)

Other loans - current 17 {0.9) (Q7)
- non-cureent 17 (0.6) (15}

(3.8 (21}

41



Northgate Information Solutions Limited

Financial Section (continued)

Notes to the consolidated accounts for the year ended 30 April 2018 (continued)

23. NET DEBT (continued)

Set out below 1s a reconciliation in cash and cash equivalents ta the decrease in net borrow:ngs at 30 Apnl 2019.

2019 2018

e o Em £m
Net decrease/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents 51 30
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements on cash held - 01
Cash and cash eguivalents net :inflow from increase N debt and debt financing {4.6) 13.5
Movement in net borrowings resulting from cash flows 0.5 166
Repayment of debt - (390.3)
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees - 36
Write off loan arrangement tees on setilement of loans - 21.2
Capualised finance costs 1.0 154
Disposal of subsidiary - (4 0y
Currency translation diferences 0.2 9.8
Movement in net debt in the year 1.7 (327.7)
Net debt a1 1 May 2.1 3298
38 21

Net debt at 30 April

24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group s financial assets and liabilties mainly comprnise bank borrowings, cash, hquid rescurces and vanous items.
such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables that anse directly from operations.

The main financial market nsks ansing from the Group's operations are cred: risk. interest rate nsk. foreign exchange nsk
ano bquudity risk The Board reviews and agrees pokcies for managing each of these risks and they are summansed below.

{a) Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty lo a financial Instrument fails 1o meet s
contractual obligations and anses principally from the Group's trade and other rece:vabies from customers

Management has a credit policy 1n place and the exposure 10 credil nsk is monitored on an on-going bas:s. Credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group does not require collateral in respect of

financial assets.

At the balance sheel date there were no significant concentrations of credit nsk The maximurm exposure to credit risk 1s
represented by the carrying amount ¢f each financial asset in the balance sheet principally trade and other receivables. The
Group provides credit to customers in the normal course of business and the amount that appears in the balance sheet is
net of a provision for impairment or credit losses of £0 3m (2018 £0.4m} The prowvision for impairment is calculated in
accordance with the Group s policy based on the age of the financial asset at each penod end and specific doubtful debts.

Expenence suggests that no prowisicn for impairment 1s required for trade and other recevables no! past due

Accrued reveriue 1s subject to an element of credit nsk, and is stated net of any aliowance (note 13). The provision for
imparment for contract assets s nil (2018 nl) The provision for '/mpairment 15 caiculated in accordance with the Group's
policy based on the specific accounts at nsk and the nature of the asset. Expenence suggests that no general provision far

impairment 1s required for accrued revenve
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
{a) Credit risk {continued)

The ageing of trade receivabies at the year-end was®

2019 2018

,,,,, £m £m

Not pas! due 16.1 184
Past due 0-30 days 238 255
Fast due 31-60 days a.5 0.7
Past due 61-90 days 0.8 02
Past due 90 days and above 2.3 15
431.5 46 3

An allowance for impatrment for trade recewables of £0 3m (2018 £0 4m) has been added back to debtors past due 90 cays
and above in armving at these figures. Included 1N debtors £ast due 90 days and above are £0 6m of habiities

In addihan to the above at 30 April 2019 there were aiso other recervables {long term debtors) of £2 2m {2018 £2 5m}

The mavement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other recevables during the penod was as follows

2019 2018

S o . o .. L Em o Em
At 1 May 04 08
Adaitional / (release of} bad debt provision 0.3 08
Utilised In the penod (0.4) [{eR))
Dispesed in the penod - (03
0.3 04

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate nsk 15 the nsk of increased net fimancing costs due to increases in Marketl nterest rates The Group finances
s operations and acguisitions through a mixture of retained profils bank borrpwings and equity the Group s main interest
rate rsk therefore comes from i1s bank borowings, the Group borrows principatly in Sterbng, US Dollars and Evros

As at 30 Aprii 2019 the Group has no significant vanable rate debt and no outstanding interest rate hedges The Group
polcy 1$ 10 undertake interest rate hedging, when necessary, (o protec! itself against adverse movements in nterest rates
Any surplus cash s invested in short-lerm bank deposits at the prevailling rates of nterest in order 1o achieve the market
rate of return.

Al the year end the interest rate profile of the Group s interest-bearng financal instruments was

2019 2018
Variable rate instruments B o £m £Em
Other secured loans 0.6 10
2019 2018
Fixed rate instruments R .. ]
Finance lease liabilities 71 104

Olher loans 1.4 22
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(¢) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates inlernatwonally and 1s exposed to foreigh currency misk on transactions denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency and on the transiation of the balance sheet and income statement of foreign operatians
into stering The currencies gvng n'se 1o this nsk are pnmarnly US dollars and Euros. The Group has both cash inflows
anc oulfiows 1n these currencies that create partal natural hedging

In managing currency rsks the Group aims to reduce the impact of short-term fluctuations on the Group s cash inflows and
outflows in a foreign currency The Group also reviews and, if reguired. hedges any material foreign currency transaction
exposure

{d} Liquidity Risk
Liguidity nisk 15 the nsk that the Group wili nct be able to meet s financial commutments as they fall due

The Group s objective s to ensure that adequate laciities are avaiabie through use of bank loans and finance leases. The
Group manages hquidity nsk through regular cash flow forecasting and monitoning of cash flows, management review and
regular review of working capital and costs

The Group regularly monitors its available headroom unger its borrowing facilities. At 30 Apnl 2019 £38.2m (2018 £38.6m)
of undrawn facilities and £13 2m (2018 £18.3m) cash were available (see notes 16 & 17)

In respect of the Group s inancial liabilities including estimated interest where apphcable. the table below includes details (at
the balance sheel date) of the penods I which they mature.

Less
Book Future than?
value cash flows year 1-2years 2-3years 3I-dyears d-5years >5years
30 Aprit 2019 Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Secured loans 17 06 06 086
Finance iease 17 7 76 38 25 09 03 01 .
habiibes
Trade payables 20 153 L83 183 S
23.0 235 19.7 25 0.9 0.3 0.1 -
Less
Book Future cash  than 1
value flows year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years >5 years
30 Aprii 2018 Notes fm ____ fm  £m __  Em __ im £m _fm _&m
Secured loans 17 1.0 11 11 - . -
Fnance lease 17 126 133 57 42 26 08
habdies
Trade payabies 20 134 134 134 - - -

270

278 202 4.2 26 08 - -

*‘These habiliies bear :nterest at a fixed rale
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24, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(e} Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

= The table below analyses financial instruments nto a far value hierarchy based on the valuation techmique used to
determine farr value

» Level 1 quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or iabiliies

= Level 2 mputs other than guoted prices inciuded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset ar habihty. either directly
(i e. as pnces) or indirectly (1.e . derved from prices).

» Level 3 inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market data (urobservable inputs)

Carrying amount Fair value

2019 2018 20189 2018
] Nates Level £m £m £m £m
Trade receivables 12 3 435 46 3 43.5 46.3
Qther recevables {iong-term trade deblors} 12 3 - - - -
Cash and cash equivaients 16 1 13.2 18.3 13.2 18.3
Secured bank lpans 17 3 (0.6) (10) {0.6) (v
Finance lease liabilties 17 3 {7.9) (12 6) {7.1) (12.8)

49.0 510 49.0 51.0

The Group has a financing arrangement with a third party secured on trade recewvabies Included in trade receivables are
assets of £0 8m securng financal liabdittes under 1 year of £0.6m (2018 £1m secunng finanmal lapiliies of £1m due under
a year)

Estimation of fair values

The fair vaiyes of financial insiruments reflect the market value at the baiance sheet cate

(f) Capital Management

The Group s objectives when managing capital {retained prafits and bank Lorrowings; are o safeguard the Group s abilty to
continue 8s 3 going concern suppor the growth of the business and 1o manttain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the

cost of borrowing. The Group finances its operations through a comfrmation of relained profils. eguity and bank borrowings
{see note 17)

25. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Group capital commitments at 30 Aprit 2019 amounted 1o £7m (2018 £4 2m)

At 30 Apni 2019 the Group's future commitments payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2019 2018
Land and Land and
buiidings Other buitdings Other
, S Em_ _Em CEm_ o Em
Leases expinng.
wWithin one year 49 14 6.2 06
Wittt two to five years 8.7 2.1 14.5 09
Fhereafter 2.8 - 30 .
17.4 is 237 15
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25. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS {continued)

A number of the Group s leased properties have been sublet by the Group Based upon the existing sublease comracts.
committec sublease payments of £22k (2018 £0 7m) are expected 10 be received by the Group over the terms of the
underlying subieases.

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Dunng the year ended 30 April 2018 the Group disposed of its UK MM and SMB businesses which included all of its defined
benefit pension schemes. As a result of the sale all liabiity in respect of these Pension Schemes passed to the purchaser of
those businesses subject to the following residual contingent liabwity which remains with the NGA HR Group

A contingent obligaticn 15 payable by NIS Acquisitons Ltd { NIS ), a fully owned subsidiary of the Group to the Schemes If
three conditions are all satisfied prior to 30 Apnl 2024 as feliows

1 The purchaser of the UK MM and SMB businesses suffers an insolvency event (as defined in section 121 (3} of the
Pensions Act 2004)

2 NIS Acguisiions Lid or any other subsidiary sells ali or substanually all of its business. assets or underlaking or 11 it
oceurs earhier there is @ beneficiai change in ownership of 50% or more of the shares in NIS. and

3 The proceeds under (2) above (Including any distrbutions made from NiS to sharehaolders during the period)
exceeds £75m (both that any proceeds of an asset sale afler a change in ownership shail not be relevant for these
puUrpases)

4 The oblgation would be equal to 7 5% of any proceeds in excess of £75m (net of any transaction costs bonuses,
expenses or debt) up to @ maximum of £7 5m {less an amount refating o the percentage of contnbutions made into
the Schemes durnng the relevart period)

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

identity of related parties

The immediate parent company 15 Northgate UK Holdings 4 Lirnited a company registered in England and Wales. and the
ulimate parent company 15 Northgate Luxembourg Holdings GP S.a.rl a company registered in Luxembourg. Consolidated
accounts are prepared by Northgale Luxembourg Holdings GP S a 1l and are available from the registered office. The Group
15 ultimately controlleg by funds advised by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. A full kst of subsidiary and associsted
undertakings and joimt ventures is included in note 4 to the Company accoumts on pages 57 to 58

Transactions with relaled parties

During the year the Company capialised £1m of financial expenses to the baiance owed to Northgate UK Holdings 4
Limited The balance owed as at the end of the year s £7 8m

The rermuneration of key management (mam board directors and Executive Leadership team) for the year was £4 6m shon-
term employee benefits, £nil post-termination benefits and less than £0 1m comnbutions to defined contnbution pension
schemes. This remuneration includes direclors emoluments disclosed in note 5 to these accounts.

28. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The foilowing sets out the key assumplions concerning the fulure and key sources of estimation and uncertainty at the
balance shegt date that may cause matenal adiustment to the carrying amounts of assets or labsities within the next
financial year

Revenue recogmihion
The measurement of revenue and resulling profit recogniion - due to the size and complexity of some of the Group s contracts
- reguires significant jydgements e be apphed, including the measurement and hring of revenue recognition, identification of

separate performance obligations and the recognibon of related balance sheet tems (such as deferred costs. accrued revenue
and deferred revenue) that result from the performance of the contract.
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28. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Greup is required to estimate the contract profitabiiity, including the costs to complete the contract The ability to accurately
forecast such costs involves esbmates around cost savings to be achieved over ime, anticipated profitability of the contract,
as wall as fulure performance against any contract-specific KPls thal could ingger variable consideration or service credits
The Group first assesses whether the contract assets are impaired and then further considers whether any onerous contract
exists Followng ths review, as outlined in note 14, provisions for impairment £1 1m {£2018 £2 Om) were wenufied relating
1o ongoing contracts and recogrised within adiusted cost of sales but no provisions have been made for service credils or
other variable consideration

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the period when it becomes probabie that there will be a fulure outflow of funds resuiting from
past operations or events which can be reasonatbly estimated The tming of recognition requires the application of
judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change Note 19 1o the accounts contains
nfomaton about the assumptons made concermng the Group's provisions

Fair value measurement on a business combination

The measurement af fair vaiues on a business combination reguires the recognition and measdrement of the identifiable
assets, liabilites and contingent iabilities  The key judgements involved are the identification and valuation of intangible
assels which reguire the estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a suitable discount rate

Impawrment of infanqible assels, including goodwili

Foliowing the acquisition of Northgale information Soiutions ple in 2007/08. the Group has sigrificant carning values of
goodwiil and mtangible assets. such as customer relatlonships, technology-based assets and trade names ang other
marketing related assets. Goodwili and other intangible assets are tested annually for imparment The imparment tests
involve estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a sutable discount rate andfor an assessment of the fair value of
e nlangible assel itself less any costs to dispose (note 9). In 2019 there was a single CGU only. In 2018 the intangible
assets were allocated to the relevant CGU betore any value in use estimation was carmed out

Recogaition of internally generated intangible assels from development

Under IFRS, internally generated itangible assets from the development phase are recogrnised If certain conditions are met
These conditions include the technical feasibility, intention to compiete, the abiity 1o use or sell the asset under development
andg the demonstration how the asset will generate probable {ulure economic benefits The cost of a recognised nteinally
generaied intangible asset compnses all duectly atinbutable cost necessary (o make the assel capatie of beng used as
intended by management. in contrast, all expenditures ansing from the research phase are expensed as incurred

We believe thal the determination whether internally generated intangible assets from development are 10 be recognised as
‘nlangible assets requires significant judgement. particularly in the following areas.

« The determmation whether activiies shoud be considered research achvities or development actwities,

» The deternington whelher the condilions for recognising an intangible asset are met reguires assumptions about future
market condiions, customer demand and other developments:

+ The term techn:ical feasibiity s not defined in IFRS. and therefore the determination whether completing an asset is
technically feasible requires a company-specific and necessary judgementai approach;

» The determination of the future ability to use or sell the intangible asset arising from the development and the
determination of probability of future benefils from sale or use and

« The determination whether a cost & directly or ndirectly attnbutable 10 an intangibie asset and whether a costis
necessary for completing a development

Taxation

The Group 15 subject to corporate taxes in numerosus Jurnisdictions. Management 18 requied Lo exercise significant judgement
in getermining the worldwide provisian for corporate taxes. Certain transachons require the use of estimates ang
judgemenits to determine the financial effect where the ultimate tax determination 1s uncertain When the final outcome of
such matiers s different, from previous estimates such differences will impact on the corporate tax in the penoad in which the
dgetermination 1s made
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29. GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2019 2018

_ £m £m
Continuing activities
Net cash from operating acltivities 197 73
Net cash used in investing aclivities (15 3) 399.3
Taxes pad (27) (2.3)
Net cash from financing achiviles (6 8) {402.7)
Discontinued activities
Net cash from operating actvities - {04)
Net cash used in investing activities - {3.5)
Net cash from financing activities - (0.8)
Net (decrease)increéase in cash ang casn eguvalents (5.1} {3.1)

30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 1 Novernber 2619 NGA HR was acquired by Alight Solutions Aight Solutions 15 a US based organisation and a leader n
technology-enabled health. wealth and human capital management {HCM} and financial soiutions. The combined expertise
of both organisations 's expected o yield new business opportunites anc cost savings although 1t is not possible at this early
stage to esumate the financial impacts. The Company has operated an incentive scheme for semior managers the value and
tming of which 15 based on the value of the equity of the Group and 1s payable when the shareholder completes a disposal
of the group A liability of approximately £8m has therefore crystailsad at the disposal date.

31. PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENTS

During the review and audit of other group companses_ it came to management's atlention that the discount rate used to
caicuiate the value in use of the business and therefore the value of goodwill was too low Use of the correct pre-tax discount
rate of 21 2% resulted in an additional impairment to goodwill of £48 $5m Restated operating profit for the year ended 30
April 201815 therefore lower by £50 Om impacts to and restaternent of the financial statements for the pror penod are given
below

2018 Additional 2018 Restated

Impairment Prior to IFR515

Restatement

{See Note 32)

£m £m £m

Group income statement - e

Operating costs — continuing operations 3048 50.0 3548

Operating costs — total 3974 50.0 447 4

Qperating loss 183 50.¢ 68.3

Loss for the period afler tax 94 2 50.0 144 2
Group statement of financial position

Goodwill 11298 500 629

Retained Earnings/{Losses) {673 9) {50 0) (723.9)
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32. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RESTATEMENTS UNDER IFRS 15

Impact of IFRS 15 Restatement on the Group's consolidated financial statements

Impact on loss for the year ended 30 Apni 2019

Coritinuing Operations Total
As previousiy AS previousty
reported inc reported inc
prior period prior periad
restatement IFRS15 restatement IFRST15
See note 31 reslatements Asresiated  See nole 31 restalements  Asrestated
£m £m Em £m _Em £m
Reveriue 2800 {0.3) 279.7 3791 (0.3} 3788
Operatng costs (354 8) (2 6) (357 4} (447 4) (28) 1450.0)
Operating loss (74.8) {2.9) (77.7} (68.3) (2.9) {71.2)
Loss for the period after tax {147.6) (2.9} {150.5) {144.2) {2.9) (147.1)
impact on asgets. habiiies and equity as at 30 Apni 2018
Trade & other receivables
AS previousty IFRS15
reported restaternents As reslated
o ) £m £m _Em
Non-Current Assels
Accrued revenue (1} - 2.8 28
Deferred costs to fulfil contracts (1) - 52 2 522
Deferred costs 1o oblain contracts {7) 09 (ehe}
55.9 55.9
Current Assets
Trade réceivables 46 3 46 3
Tax recoverable 12 1
Unamortised issue cost on RCF 13 13
Accrued revepue (1) 192 192
Deferred costs to fulfil comracts (1) 208 208
Deferred costs to obtamn contracts (1) - 03 03
Other receivables and prepayments 530 (42 2) 108
101.8 {1.9) 993

(1) Accrued revenue and deferred cosls were reported under other receivables and prepayments m 2018
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32. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RESTATEMENTS UNDER IFRS 15 {continued)

Impact on assets habiities and equity as at 30 Aprit 2018 (continued)

Trade & other payables

As previously {FRS15
reported restalements As restated
£m Em £m
Non-Current liahilities
Deferred revenue 49.0 490
Accruals 2.6 26
516 51.6
Current liabilities
Trade payables 134 - 13.4
Deferred revenue 107 10.8 215
Accruals 494 1.0 504
Social secunty and other taxation 150 - 15.0
Other payables S 19 R - 19
90.4 11.8 102.2
Provisions
As previously
reporied inc prior
period restatement IFRS15
See note 31 resialermnents As restated
£m £m £m
Non-Current liabilities
Contract loss provision (2) 11 {1.1) -
Property prowsion 08 - 09
Qther provisions 02 - 02
2.2 (1.1 1.1
Current liabilities
Contract loss provision {2} 08 (0.9) -
Property provision o7 - o7
Other pravisions 01 0.1
1.7 (0.9) 0.8
Total effect on Net assets 1141 {7.4) 106.7
Total effect on Sharehoider’s funds 114.1 (7.4) 106.7
Total effect on Retained earnings {723.9) (7.4) (731.3)

{2) Conlrac! loss provisions for onercus contacts are mil for the Group under IFRS 15. The impaiment of deferred
costs. withun current and non-current assels reflecis the amount to which the assels are recovarable Any excess
of future losses affer fully impainng contract assets would be reparted as a provision
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32. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RESTATEMENTS UNDER IFRS 15 (continued)
tmpact on Cash Flow Statement for the yvear ended 30 Apni 2019

A5 previously
reported inc prior

period restalerment 1FRS15
See note 31 restaternents As restated
e N 3 £m £m £m
Loss for the penaod (144 2) 29 (147.1)
Change n trade and other recervables (37 68 31
Change in trade and other payables - (138 439 . (178)

The implementation phase for Payrall and HR Admin services and for Consultancy takes zero to 3 years. dunng which time
the related performance obligation is not being delivered to the customer Under the contracts NGA HR 15 entitied to bill the
customer during the mplementation phase and hence deferred revenue habiliies are created Correspondingly costs ncurred
dunng this phase are assessed and where they create a contract asset. are capitalised lo deferred costs. Where revenue in
implementation phase had previously been accrued te match the percenlage of completen of that phase this 1s no longer
applhcable and hence accrued revenue s smaller.

Previously reporied revenue and costs of third panty kcence sales to customers were all recogrised on the principal basis,
where the gross charge lo the customer 1s shown as revenue and the price patd to the suppher :s shown as cost both spread
over the life of the licence. To restate to IFRS 15, the Group has Wentified any reseller agreernents and used the agent basis
to account for these, The full revenue over the hife of the lease less the full costs over the hife are recognised as commssion
revenue at the point that ownership transfers to the customer which 1s when the Group s performance obligation 1s fulfiled.
This 1s & urmung difference in loss for the penod. bringing profit forward from future years as well as ar increase in accrued
revenue and accrued costs for future invoices expected for the contract

Deferred tax impact!s of these changes are nil.
Sales commissions are incremental costs to obtatn a contract and hence where significant are deferred and released over
the life of the contract There was no impact of the new accounting standard IFRS 15 on the Group s profit and loss or balance

sheet

Where the timing of revenue and profit recognition has changed the future estimated losses on any individual contract the
difference has been adjusied through provisions
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33. ANALYSIS OF DISCONTINUED AND CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Operating Costs

Year ended 30 April 2019 Year ended 30 Apni 2018
(Restated)
Discontinued Discontinuad
Continuing Gperations Continuing  Operahions
Operations (note 2} Total  operations (note 2) Totai
£m £m £m £ Em £m
Other external gperating charges 84.5 - 84.5 610 229 839
Staff costs
- wages ang salanes 158.8 - 158.8 1777 389 2176
- social secunty c0s!s 221 - 221 211 58 269
- other pension costs defined conlnbution 2.3 B 23 23 20 43
- other pension costs defined benefif - current 0.5 . 0.5 11 11
year service cosl
Depreciation of owned assels 2.9 - 2.9 4.1 0.5 46
Depreciation of assets held under finance leases 1.4 - 1.4 1.7 03 20
Armortisalion of development costs and purchased 18.1 . 181 16.6 49 215
software
Amaorhsation of acquired intangibles 2.3 - 2.3 66 138 205
Impairment of goodwiii 15.7 - 15.7 500 - 500
Impairment of other intangible assels 1.4 - 1.4 . - .
Other Income {4.6) - (4.6) (43) (4.3)
LLoss on disposal of fixed assels - - - 48 a1 49
LossHProfit) on sale of subsidiary (note 2} - {0.6} (0.6) - 51 5 1
305.4 {0.6) 3048 3459 922 4381
Severance and restructunng 29 . 29 65 0.2 67
Consulancy fees 2.8 - 2.8 0% - 09
Contract termination COsls 0.1 - 01 01 - 01
Property provisions 0.1 - 0.1 16 0.2 18
impairment of JV investments T o 24 - 24
Significant restructunng. one-off tems and 5.9 . 5.9 115 0.4 11.9
propedy costs
Total operaling costs 311.3 (0.6} 310.7 357 4 926 450.0

Net Financing Costs

Year ended 30 April 2019

Year ended 30 Apri 2018

Discontinued Discorlnied

Continuing  Operations Continuing Qperabions
Operations {note 2) Total operanons (note 2) Total
o o o o Em  _ £m £m __Em __Em  Em
Interest income ~ bank and other interest recelvable o1 -0 206 - .20
Financial income 0.1 - 0.1 20 - 20

Interest expense ~ bank ioans and overdrafts — cash

spend 1.7 - 1.7 14.2 17 159
Inlerest expense - bank icans and overdrafts — accrued 1.1 - 1.1 03 - 6.3
Norn-cash bank lpan interest - added ‘o loan 0.7 - 0.7 15.4 - 154
Amortisation of loar arrangement fees 04 - 0.4 249 - 24.9
Net foreign exchange Iosses/currency derivalives 1.3 - 1.3 163 01 164
Finance charges payable under linance leases 0.5 . 0.5 o7 01 08
Net pension finance expense (note 16) o - - - 12 12
Financial expenses 5.7 - 5.7 71.8 31 74.9
5.8 - 5.6 69.8 31 7Z9

Net financing costs
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Non-current assets
Investments
Debtors amourt failing due after more than one year

Notes 2019 2018
Restated
{note 9)
£m — Em
4

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Debtors: amount faling due less that or equal 1o one year 5 85 .
Total assets 91.2 1321
Current liabilities

interesi-bearing loans and borrowings 6 88 03
Tatal current liabilities 8.8 03
Total assets less current liabilities 82.4 1318
Non-current liabilities

Creditors. ameount talling due after more than cne year 7 52.0 535
Interesi-beanrg loans and borrowmgs - e 74
Total non-current liabilities 520 €09
Net assets 0.4 709
Capital and reserves

Issued share captat 8 8.1 G
Other Reserves 8319 8319
Retained earnings {807.6) {767 1}
Shareholders’ funds 30.4 709

The notes on pages 55 to 61 farm pan of the financial statemenls

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 January 2020 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Catlulh

Steven Chatker
Chief Financial Officer
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Financial Section (continued)

Company $tatement of Changes in Equity as at 30 April 2019

Equity

Share Other Retamned shareholders

capital reserves earmngs funds

_ - £m 'm £m £m

Balance at 30 Apnl 2017 61 B319 (633.6) 204 4
Restated ioss for lhe year {note 9) - - {133 5) {133.5)
Balance at 30 April 208 6.1 8319 {767 1} 70.9
Lass for the year (40.5) (40 5)
Balance at 30 Aprit 2019 6.1 8319 {807.6) 304

The notes on pages 55 1o 81 are pant of these financ:al statements
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Notes to the company accounts for the year ended 30 April 2019

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting pohicies have been applied consistently in gealing with items which are considered matenal in relation to the
accounts.

Basis of Preparation
Northgate Infermation Solutions Limded (the Company 1:s a company incorparated and domicled in the UK

These finanmal slalements were praepared m accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Frameworik ("FRS 101"} The financial stalements have been prepared under the historical cos! convertion

In prepanng these Hinancial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of
International Financral Reporting Standards as adopted by the ELJ { Adopted IFRSs ) but makes amendments where
necessary i order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out beiow where advantage of the FRS 101 gisclosure
exemptions nas been taken

Under section s408 of the Compames Act 2006 the company is exermpt from the requirement (o present s own proht and
loss account.

In these financial statements. the company has applied the exemptions avatabie under FRS 101 1n respect of the following
disclosures.

« Cash Flow Statement and relaled notes

« Disclosures in respect of ransactions with wholly owned subsidaries

+ Disclosures in respect of capital management,

« The effects of new but not yet effective IFRSs, and

+ Disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Management Personnei

The accounting pohcies set oul below have, uniess otherwse slated. been applird ronsistently 1o all penods presented In
these financial statements

Accounting developrrients
IFRS 9 was apphed for the first me i these financial statements this has not resuited 1in any financial mpacts
Eogreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are transiated into Sterhng at the foreign exchange rate runng at the date of the
transacton Monetary assets and liabiiies denominated in foreign currencies at the batance sheel date are relranslated to
ihe functignal currency at the foreign exchange rate rulng at thal date Non-monetary assels and labiltias (hat are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are ranstated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction Non-mongtary assets and habihes denominated in foregn currencres that are stated at fair value are
retransiated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rales ruling at the gates the farr value was deternmned. Foregn
exchange differences ansing on transiation are recognised in the proft and inss account

Financial instrumentis

The policies disclosed in note 1 to the Group financial statements in respect of recognition measurement and presentation
of financiat instruments are applicabie to the Parent Company financial statements

Amounts recervable from or owed to group undertakings are recognized at amorlised ros! using the effectve Interest
method ang are reduced by allowances for effective credit losses

Investments

Investments in subsidiary underlakings are stated at cost unless i the opimon of the Directors. there has been impairrment
to their value in which case they are immediately written down to therr estimated recoverable amount
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2. STAFF NUMBERS

The only employees of the Company were the Directors. The average number employed dunng the year was Nil (2018 3),
and all empioyees were transferred to other Group companies during the previous year No remuneration was paid by the
Company to the Drrectors (2018 it} The notonal cost of directors was considered mconsequentiai gunng the current ano

prior year
3. RESULT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Company made a loss of £45 5m it the year {2018 £133 5m loss (restated))

4. INVESTMENTS

Subsidary
ungertakings
£m
Cost:
investment in NIS Acquisitions Ltd
At 1 May 2018 and 30 April 2019 232 0
Impairment losses:
At 1 May 2017 (0.0}
tmpairment charge for the year (51 0)
At 30 April 2018 T i o T - "’(’5}”’0)
Addiional impairment charge for the year (prior year
adjustment) (note 9) (56.1}
Impairment charge for the year {42.2)
At 30 Apri) 2018 (149.3)
Net book value:
At 30 April 2019 82.7
At 30 Aprii 2018 (reslated) note 9 124 9

In 2018 the recoverable amaunt with regard fo the investment in subsidiary figure was determined from its fairr value iess
cests to sell This was based an the external valualion received as parl of the sales process which finally resulted In the sale
of s subsidianes to Alight Solutions on 15t November 2018 (see note 30 page 48] The resulting impairment idenbfied of

£42 2m has been reflected in the current year
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4. INVESTMENTS (continued)

The subsidiary undertakings at 30 Apnl 2019 the nature of whose business s the sale of computer solutions and services

were

Nama .
NIS Acquisitions Limited”
ARINSO Argentina S A

ARINSO Austraha Pry Ltd

ARINSD France SAS

AR'NSO ibenca S.A U

ARINSO Inlernationai PIviippimes inc
ARINSO Luxembourg SA

ARINSQ Mexco SA de OV

ARINSO People Services Limied
ARINSO Portugal — Srstemay
Software e Servicios SA

ARINSO UK Limtes

NGA HR india Pvi Lid

NGA Human Resources Denmark A'S
NGA Human Resources Oy

NGA Muman Resources Sweden AR
NGA Japan KK (NGA Japan Kabushik
Kasha}

NGA Quisourting Canada tng

NGA Outsourting Malaysia Sdn Bho
NGA Qutsoureng Singapore Ple Lig
NIS Holaings B

RIS Payrall Solutons (india) Prvate
Limnied

WIS Receivables No 2 Limited

NIS Recewvables Mo 1 Limited
Northgale Annso Hungary Korfatal
Felglossequ Tarsasag

Nonhgate nlormat.on Sautiors Shina
iia

Nofthgale infommation Solulions
Holdings Lirniteds

Nonthgate JK Company
NorthgateAnnsn Austna AG
NorthgateAnnso Beigium SANY
hadhgateAnnse Braxd infomnatea
tloa

hortngaleAnnge Canada Inc
NorthgateAnnse Deutseniand Gmis-
tarhgateAnnse France Holtings SA%
NarthgateAnnse Granada S A U
NorthgateAnnso HR Services LLC
NorthgateAnnso Inc
NourthgateArinso tnlgrmation
Technalagy Saervices iDasan) Co
tonhgateAnaso israel Limited
NorthgateAnnss daha Limited
Narthgateannso Malaysid Sdn Bhd

NurangateAnnso Negerdsnd By
NGAHR Spz.o.o

NonhgateAnnse Singapere PTE Lt
NorthgateAnnsa Spain § A U
NorthgateAnnso Swizenand Li¢

Shareholding

1004
G

0
100"

1008,
100%
100G
A0
100
106%

1005
100
00,
W0
100¢,
100%,

100
1004
00,
004
1007

e
G-
Nel

100
100

e
100
100%
100,

1600,
1000

00
100
100%%,
100,
100

0%
100
HHY

10000
100",
100%
100%
1007

Registered Ofce address

Peoplebuwlding 2 Maylands Avenue Hemel Hempstead Hetordshre HP2 ANV Jnded Kngdorm
Ciicertre Buiding Prikoiano Puevrredon 20980 Piss 2 Fase 11, 1640 Mamnes Pora de Buenos Aves
Afgeriing

Ground Floor 164 Fultanton Rcad Dulwieh SA 5065 Austraia

Rue de l'eqabte 2 92748 Nonlerie Cegex, France

Eafic:o Amenca H C'Procan 7, Puera 3 Planta 1a, 28023 Madnc Span

4F Bulding 1 ETON Cyberpod Conathian Ortigas Avenue cor EDSA Quezer Cily 1110, Pruppines
32-36 Boulevard DrAviangnas, o 1160 Luxembourg Luxemboury

Beusang Domingues Na 84, Col Mague! Hdalgo Detegacion Daipar 0P 14260, Mexeo
Peoplebuilding 2. Maylands Avenue Heme: Hempstead, Hetfordsnre HP2 ANW Urited Kingdom
Rua Radoge Sampain 27 50 1150 278 Lisboa, Poregal

Peoplebulding 2 Maylands Avenue, Heme Hampslead Hertfordshire #HP2 4NW Linded Kingdom
drd Floor Madbu ndustna: Estate Pandurang Budhkar Marg Wod. Mumba 10

Hoefdingsvej 34 1 toar 2500 Valby Deamoary

Naiahgenkaty 224 00210 Helsna Firdard

NorlhgateArnso Sweden AE Gustavsiundsvagen 135 51 '67 51 Bromma  Sweden

Etusu Pnme Sguare 9F Mo 138 14700 Y chome Shibuyake Tokoyo. 155-00142 Lapan

The Standard cle Butging 121 King Street Wes! Suite 2220, Torontc ON MSH 379 Canacs

3-8 3r¢ Flog: Block B Magan Averue tl. H12 Jalan Yap Kwan Seng 50450 Kuata Lumpsr Malaysa
20 keCativm Street 1601 Toke Manne Centre 069046 S.ngapare

Frms Bembardpien 200 1097 08 Amsterdam Netherlands

A3 shybham Co Giperative Hous.ng Society Lo Akur Read iKandwvaln iEast)) Mumba: 400107
frecha

Peoplebuidng 2 Mayiands Avenue Hemel Hempsteda Hertfordshire HO2 aNW, Jniled Kengdarm
Feopleoulding 2 Mayianas Avenut Heme! Hempstead Hertordshe WP2? 4NW Unded Kingdem
1146 Bugapest mermna ot 17 floor ng 87 Budapest Hungary

"E Foor Rattomee House 10 Dudder’ Streat Denttal HONg Kong Hong nong
Peoplebuiging 2 Maylands Avenue Heme! Hempslead Hertfordsmre HP2 4NV Lnted Kirgagre

Deoplebulding 2 Mayaros Avenae beme Hempsteag Hertforgsmee P2 4NN Uniteg Kingdam
Marahiter Sirafte 1233 1060 Wien Austno

Fioor * Tee Crescent Route de Lennk 451 Lennkse Barn . enmkse Bane 1070 Brossely Beigar
Atameaa Magera Numero & 5 andm corunto 52 Atphavile murco de Barsen Suo Tau o Bras

340 Ainen Street Sute 1400 Ottawa ON KR 0AS Canada

Wakjeckerstirasse 11 HabdE Mardelder - Vyallddord Germnany

Rie o veyahle 7 92748 Nanlerre, Cedex Frarce

Arabiai Ne 19 18004 Granada Spae

S Letnkovskava Srr 11415 Moscow Russian Federator

HOOO Baymeadows Vway Jacksonwie Fo 32256. 7520 Unted Stales

SF Bidy 11 Davan Software Park, § Digiat Square Davan waonng 116023 China

Aba tie’ Sived StO16 Ramat Gan Te Au 12w

voa Mural, 23 20155 Midans taly

TR Floor Menaea Hap Serg No 1 & 1.aien £ Ramee 50250 Kuada Lompur Witayah Persokutuas
Mataysta

Mevelgaarde 8 JA302L MNieuwegein Netheddnas

Sciegennego 3 Sk 40 114 Katowee Polang

Temo anme Centre 20 MA<Carlum Sireer 16 C1 Singapore 069040 Singapore

Caite Gran vis oe Coton 58 18001 Granaoa Span

Ay olher *3, CH 126 Nyven Switzartang
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4. INVESTMENTS (continued)

Compeny Name Sharwholding Offies address
NonhgateAnnso Thaiand Company Ltd 100% 17th Fiogr Uini 2-4 191 Silom Road. Kwaeng, Silom Khet Bangrak, Bangkok, Thailand
NodhgateArnso Turkey HR 100 Barbaros Mahalies: Halk Caddes: No 8/A Palladium Ofis ve Residence Binast Kat 2, 34746
Consuttancy and Outsourcing L1d Atagehir Istanbul Turkey
RQebus Goup Lirmted 0% Paoplebuiding 2 Maylands Avenue, Hemel Mempsieao, Herdorgshire, HPZ 4NW_ United Kingaom
Renus Hoidings Limited 100, Peopigbuirding 2 Maylands Avenue Hemel Hempstead Hertfordshine, HPZ ANW Unded Kingdom
Rebus HR Groug Lidt 0o Appieby Sersaces Bermuda, itd Canon s Court 22 Victona Streel Mam:ton. Bermuda HM 12

Bermnuda
Rebus HR Hoidings Lirned 1004 Pecplebulding 2 Mayiands Avenue Hemet Hempstead Hertfordshire HP2 ANW Unileg Kingdom
Rebus MR Maragement Limited 1005 Peaplebuiding 2. Maylands Avenue Hemel Hempslead Herfordshee, HP2 ANW United Kingdom
Rebus Humar Resource Services 100 Peoplebuiiding 2 Maylands Avenue Heme! Hempstead, Hertfargshire, HP2 4NW, United Kingdom
Lwrited

Rebus Muman Resourtes Limited 1C00% Peapiebuiting 2 Maylands Avenye Hemel Hempslead. Hertfordshire
Rebus Sctware Loed 1007 Peaplebwidimy 2 Mayiands Avenue Hemael Hempsiead Hertforoshire

" held directly by Northgate Information Solutions Limited

All shares held are ordinary shares

HPZ ANW. Urted Kingdom
HPZ 4NW United Kingdom

The Directors have considered the value 1n use of the investments using a combination of Income Approach and Market

valuation methodologes and have concluded that no impaiment in investment value 15 appropnate.

5. DEBTORS
2019 2018
(Reslated)
Notes £m £m

Non-current assets

Amount owed by group undenakings 6 - 71
Other recervabies - 01
- 7.2

Current assets
Amourt owed by group undertakings 6 8.5 -
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6. INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

2019 2018
{Restated)
£m £m
Current liabilities
Amount due 10 group undefdakings 85
Oblgatons under finance leases 03 03
8.8 0.3
Non-current liahilities
Amount due o group undertakings - 71
Obligations under finance teases . 03

- 7.4

During the previous year Noringate UK Holdings 2 Lirmted another group company received a loan of £7 1m from GSMP Vv
Onshore Sar |, GSMP V Offshore S ari. GSMP V Institutional S a rt & Broad Street Credit Hoidings LLC  This toan was
passed down through the group from Northgate UK Holdings 2 Limited to Northgate Information Solutions Holdings Limites
viz the intermediate holding companies being Northgate UK Holdings 3 Limited. Northgate UK Holdings 4 Limited and
Northgate Information Soiutions Limited

Per the terms of the loan agreement, the total amount payable 10 the lenders inclusive of the principal advance at 31 January
2018, was £14m  The pnncipzl loan amount of £7 1m together with interest of £0 3m was repaid on 31 January 2018 The
amount outstanading as at 31 January 2018 of £6 7m was converted imo a new loan which attracts interest at 20% per annum
The new loan and any accrued interest is payable on the earlier of Seplember 2022 or the sale of a1l or the majority of operating
assels of the group

The amount owed by group undertakings at the year end represents the advance of £6 7m and the accrued interast therean

due from Narthgate Information Solutions Holtings Limited  The amount due to group underakings represents the advance
and accrued mterest due to Northgate UK Holdings 4 Limited

7. CREDITORS

2018 2018
{Restated}
£m £m
Non-current liabilities
Amount due to group underakings 52.0 535
- o “52.6 ) 535
8. SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital of the Company s as follows
2018 2018
~ £m £m
Ailotted. called up and fully paid-
605,300,340 ordinary shares of £0 01 each (2017 605 300 340 shares of £0 01) 6.1 61

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dvidends from tme Lo ime ang are entitled 10 one vote per share at
meetngs of the company
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9. PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

Durnng the review of the accounts for the year ended 30 Apnl 2018 in respect of certain ¢of the Company s subsidiaries and after
the fiing of these Group and Company accounts for the same pernod, management became aware of oversights in the
preparation of the Northgate Informaton Soiutions Lid Company accounts for the year ended 30 Aprit 2018 These are
summansed below.

The discount rate used 1n the vaiuation exercise to support the carmying value of the invesiment in subsidhary (see Note
4y as 21 30 Apnl 2018 was oo low Use of the amended discount rate identified an additional impairment of £56 1m fo
be recognised In the prar year

Fmancial expenses for the year ended 30 April 2018 were understated by £21 9m Expenses crystallised as a resuit
of the repayment of the Company s ioan faciily were incorrectly passed through to another subsidiary undertaking
amounts due o subsidiary undertakings a1 the prior year end therefore were also understated by the same amount
During the year ended 30 Apni 2018, the Company took out a loan from an intermediate parent company Northgate
UK Holdings 4 Ltd and issued a loan to s indirect subsidiary Northgate Information Solutions Holdings Limited
Neither pencipal amounts of £6 8m accrued interest £0 3m nor associated interest charges or income of £0 3m for
elther loan were recorded in the books of the Company

A finance lease habiily of £0 6m was omitted from the Company s books This lease liabity had been reflected in the
books of another subsidiany underiaking in error. Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings al that date therefore were
overstated by the same amount

The mpacts of these restatements on the Company s Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Changes in Equity are
shown below

Restated Company Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2018

As previously Adjustments Restated
reported
£m £m £m

Non-current assets
Investments 181.0 (56 1) 1249
Debtors amount faling due after more than one year 01 71 72
Total non-current assets 181 1 (48 Q) 1321
Current liabilities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings - 03 0.3
Total current liabilities - 0.3 0.3
Totai assets less current liabilities 1811 (49.3) 131 8
Non-current liabilities .
Creditors amount falling due after more than one year 322 21.3 535
Interest-beanng losny and borrowings . 7 4 74
Total non-current liabilities 322 28.7 609
Net assets 148.9 {78.0} 70.9
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9. PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT (continued)

Restated Company Statement of Changes in Retained Equity for the year ended 30 April 2018

As previously Adjustments Restated

reported
- e o £m £m £m
Batance at 30 Apnl 2017 {633 6) - (633 6)
Loss for the year {55 5) {78 0} (133 &)
Balance at 30 April 2018 {689.1) (78.0) (767.1)

10. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

On 30 Apnl 2019 the immediate parent company of the company 15 Northgate UK Haldings 4 Limited a company reg:stered
in England and Wales and the ultimate parent company was Northgate Luxembourg Moldings GP S arl. a company
registered 1in Luxembourg. The Group was ultimately controlied by funds adwiseg by Tne Goldman Sachs Group Inc
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